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SECTION I - INTRODUCTORY SECTION 



CITY OF 
MARSHFIELD 

June 25, 2025 

Honorable Mayor 
Board of Aldermen 
Citizens of the City of Marshfield, Missouri 

798 South Marshzill, Marshfield, MO :i5706 

p (417) 859-2352 • f- (417)468-S267 

www marshfield mo.gov 

We are pleased to present for your review the City ofMarshfield' s Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year that ended December 31 , 2024. This report 
represents the culmination of twelve months of financial activity that is presented in 
conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

City staff is responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the financial data being presented. 
It is to the best of our knowledge and belief that the information being reported in this document 
presents fairly the financial position of the City and the results of operations, in all material 
respects. 

The City's financial statements were audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards by an independent firm of certified public accountants, Decker & Pace. The purpose of 
Decker & Pace's audit is to express an opinion on the City's financial statements by obtaining a 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The 
independent audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence of the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used, the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. The 
independent auditor ' s report is located at the beginning of the financial section of the ACFR. 

Management' s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial 
statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with 
it. The basic financial statements and notes provide an overview of the City ' s financial position 
and operating results. The combining statements for nonmajor funds, and other schedules 
provide detailed information relative to the basic financial statements. 

r rr-. 11\11 IT'(~ ~ 
Mayor Natalie McNish 

BUILDI 

Aldermen J.C. Cunningham, John Quinn, Mike Frazier & Stacy Lee 



The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally 
presented in a multi-year basis. This section is designed to provide the user with a broader and 
more complete understanding of the City and its financial affairs than is possible from only the 
financial statements and supporting schedules presented in the financial section. 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Marshfield is located in southwest Missouri, is the county seat of Webster County, and has 
approximately 7,935 residents. The City encompasses an estimated five square miles of land and 
is approximately 25 miles northeast of Springfield. In addition to Interstate 44, two cross-country 
routes, the legendary Route 66 and bicycle Route 76 intersect in Marshfield. 

The City of Marshfield provides a full range of services, including water services, wastewater 
services, street maintenance, cemetery, police, parks and recreational facilities and programs, 
planning and zoning, and general administrative services. The City's Street Maintenance 
Department provides maintenance for surfaced streets and alleys, City owned right of ways, 
property, buildings, and structures. Marshfield's Public Water System provides water to 
approximately 3,100 metered customers. The City provides quality drinking water from three (3) 
deep water wells. These wells produce between 650 and 750 GPM (gallons per minute). 
Marshfield has an average daily flow of approximately 600,000 gallons with a peak demand up 
to 1,100,000 gallons. The water system maintains its pressure from four (4) elevated storage 
tanks capable of storing 1,100,000 gallons of water. The City operates a modem, EPA and 
MoDNR permitted, Complete Mix Activated Sludge Wastewater Facility. The Facility can 
provide treatment ofup to 1.5 million gallons per day of sewage and up to 3.5 million gallons per 
day of wet weather inflow to the collection system. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The City of Marshfield operates as a fourth-class city under the Revised Statutes of the State of 
Missouri (RSMo) and is divided into two wards, the West Ward and the East Ward. The City is 
governed by a Mayor and four aldermen, two from each Ward. The Mayor is elected at large by 
the voters of the city every two years. Aldermen are elected by the voters in their respective 
Wards to serve a staggered two-year term. 

As the legislative body, the Board of Aldermen is responsible for enacting all ordinances, 
resolutions and regulations governing the City. Appointment of the City Administrator, City 
Clerk, City Collector, Chief of Police, City Attorney are made by the Mayor with the consent 
and approval of the majority of the members of the Board of Aldermen. 

The City Administrator is the Chief Administrative Assistant to the Mayor and has general 
superintending control of the administration and management of the government business, 
officers and employees of the City, subject to the direction and supervision of the Mayor. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. The 
budget preparation begins with each department's detailed estimates of revenues and 
expenditures. The estimates are evaluated with the City Administrator, department directors, and 
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ultimately the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. The Board of Aldermen must approve the annual 
budget no later than December 31 st preceding the beginning of the new fiscal year. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

The total tax revenue for the City rose by 14.2% in 2024 and sales tax revenue increased by 
18.5%. The sales tax increase is due to the full year of the additional sales tax for public safety 
that was approved by the voters in 2023 . The City is empowered to levy property taxes on both 
real and personal property located within its boundaries and has the authority to extend its 
corporate limits through annexation when deemed appropriate and is approved by City Council. 

ECONOMIC 

The City of Marshfield partners on economic development efforts with Webster County, 
Marshfield Development League, Webster County EDC and the Marshfield Chamber of 
Commerce. These entities continue to work together to collaborate and utilize resources to 
benefit the community and to spur on economic development. There are currently efforts being 
put forth to bring an urgent care center to Marshfield, which has been identified for years as a 
priority. There is also an initiative to spur on ecotourism with the 100th anniversary of Rt. 66 
coming up in 2026 since the route comes right through the heart of the City. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

During Fiscal Year 2024, the City of Marshfield completed and continued work on the following 
major initiatives: 

• In 2019 construction began on awarded contracts for the improvements to the city ' s water 
system. Engineering and construction continued through 2021. These improvements were 
completed in 2024. 

• Continued implementation of a long-range 'Growth Plan' for the community that was 
adopted in 2020. 

• Discussion continues for the design and construction of a new activity complex. 
Discussions held during the 2024 season will hopefully result in moving into a design 
phase with an architectural firm to get solid numbers and a solid design that will satisfy 
the needs of the community and that the City of Marshfield can afford. 

• The City commissioned a water and sewer rate study to evaluate the rates of each utility 
system, including operational costs, projected repair and replacement budgets, materials 
and labor, emergency funds, debt services, regulatory obligations, inflation and more. 
The study was completed early 2022 with a recommended five-year plan to adjust the 
water and sewer rates to a point in which they can adequately fund the necessary costs for 
the systems. 

• City Administration and Elected officials continue to work on sewer improvements and 
sewer expansion into the new corridor that was made possible by the new I-44 
interchange at mile market 103 . The City was awarded $5M from the state for these 
improvements. The City has budgeted an additional $2M, which includes money from the 
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American Rescue Plan Act (ARP A) and unallocated cash, to spend a minimum of $7M 
on sewer related items. Design for such improvements began in December 2023. 

• The City was awarded a Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Grant from MoDOT 
in 2022. The Grant was awarded to build a new walkway along N. Elm Street from the 
existing trail/sidewalk at Elm and Hubble Drive south to the existing sidewalk behind the 
High School Football Field, and from Elm and Julian west over to the other sidewalk 
connection at Julian and N. Locust. Engineers for the City began design in 2023 . 

• City Elected Officials made the decision in 2024 to turn the Marshfield Municipal Court 
over to the Missouri State Court system. Revenues from fines will continue to be 
budgeted going forward as well as expenses as the City of Marshfield is still required to 
provide a prosecuting attorney. 

• Through the passing of a public Safety Tax, the City of Marshfield has been able to add 
four new police officers to its workforce. This initiative also allowed for the purchase of 
new safety equipment, body cameras, radar guns and has funded phase one of most likely 
four phases of a full remodel and restoration of the Marshfield Police Department 
Facility. Future phases anticipated over the next 2-3 years for completion. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Consideration is given to the adequacy of internal accounting controls in developing the City's 
accounting system. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance, 
but not absolute, that assets are effectively safeguarded, and transactions are performed in 
accordance with management's authorization and are properly recorded. The cost of a control 
should not exceed the benefits and is recognized in the concept of reasonable assurance through 
the evaluation of cost and benefit estimates. It is our belief that within this framework the City's 
internal accounting control system adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable 
assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 

Internal Budgeting Controls 

All funds are budgeted on an annual basis. The Budget Officer is designated by the Board of 
Aldermen. Under the direction of the Budget Officer, the annual budget for all funds is prepared 
and submitted to the Board for approval. Management uses the annual budget as a control tool 
for financial planning and a measurement tool for operational expenditure levels. Budgeting of 
the enterprise activity is necessary to ensure the level of user rates is sufficient to cover 
operational costs and to service debt. 

The Board adopts the budget before the beginning of the fiscal year by ordinance. In no event 
shall the total authorized expenditures from any fund exceed the estimated revenues to be 
received plus any unencumbered balance or less any deficit estimated for the beginning of the 
budget year. The legal level of budgetary control is at the department level within a fund. Budget 
amendments below the department/fund level may be approved by the appropriate department 
director. The Department Directors shall not increase the total amount authorized for 
expenditures from any fund during the fiscal year, unless the Board adopts a resolution setting 
forth the facts and reasons making the increase necessary and adopts an ordinance authorizing 
the expenditures. 
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Relevant Financial Policies 

Several policies have been developed and implemented by the City to ensure protection of the 
City ' s assets and to provide internal controls. The City ' s Purchasing Policy was updated 
September 2024 and it covers topics such as conflict of interest, competitive bidding and other 
purchasing procedures. Other City policies include Identity Theft Policy, Anti-Fraud Policy, 
Water and Sewer Rate Adjustment Policy, and Vehicle & Fleet Policy. In May 2018 the City 
adopted an Investment Policy. The Investment Policy establishes the parameters for investing 
the City ' s unallocated funds and identifies the investment objectives, preferences, constraints on 
the where these funds can be invested as well as how the investment program is to be managed. 
The Internal Control Policy was adopted in March 2022 which documents the procedures that 
make up the City ' s internal controls. April 2022 the Grants Policies and Procedures were 
adopted to establish guidelines and requirements for the application, acceptance, and use of grant 
revenue. 

Debt Administration 

As of December 31 , 2024, the City of Marshfield had an outstanding debt balance of 
$20,207,357 compared to a balance of$21 ,463 ,275 on December 31 , 2023. Of this balance, 
$8,365,000 is general obligation debt. The remainder of the debt balance is comprised of the 
following: 

• General Leasehold Agreements - $152,318 
• General Certificates of Participation - $2,485 ,000 
• Enterprise Revenue Bonds - $9,205,039 
• Enterprise Leasehold Agreements - $0.00 

OTHER INFORMATION 

In 2018 the City of Marshfield went through a lengthy vision casting process. From that vision 
casting brought forth several ideas about the future of the community. At the top of the list were 
economic development and activities for our youth. The City has embarked on multiple avenues 
anxiously trying to spur those ideas into reality. With the award of $5,000,000 from the state, the 
City of Marshfield anticipates being able to extend sewer services to an additional 100+ acres 
that would not have been able to be accommodated prior to the award. With discussions 
regarding the need for more activities and things to do, the City is working with Architects, 
Engineers, and financial advisors to come up with a plan to move the Activity Complex forward. 
This is anticipated to move forward in 2025 for at least the design phase. 
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Decker & Pace 
C E RTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Marshfield, Missouri 

Opinions 

3259A EAST SUNSHINE 

SPRINGFIELD MISSOURI 6580'1 

4178871888 

FAX 417 887 0028 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marshfield , 
Missouri , as of and for the year ended December 3 I, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City of Marshfield, Missouri's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

In our opinion , the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marshfield, Missouri , as of December 3 I, 
2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis.for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor ' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the City of Marshfield, Missouri and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities<~[ Management.for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation , and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Marshfield, Missouri's 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date , including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 



Auditor's Re.\ponsibilitiesfor the Audit o_f the Fimmcia/ Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery , intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material ifthere is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
we: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements . 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Marshfield , Missouri 's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed . 

Eva luate the appropriateness of" accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements . 

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the City of Marshfield, Missouri's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 

Required Supplementary I,~formatio11 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios , and 
schedule of pension plan contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and , although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational , economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries , the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 
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not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. • 

S11ppleme11t(IIJ' h~formatio11 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Marshfield, Missouri's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balance-budget to actual- nonmajor fund governmental fund and schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements/or Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balance-budget to actual- nonmajor fund governmental fund and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 19, 2025 on our 
consideration of the City of Marshfield, Missouri's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters . The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the resu Its of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Marsh field, 
Missouri's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Marshfield, Missouri's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises 
the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor' s report 
thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an 
opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or 
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that 
an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Decker & Pace, LLC 
Springfield, Missouri 
May 19, 2025 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the City of Marshfield, Missouri (the City), we offer readers of the City's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2024. We encourage readers to use this document in conjunction with the transmittal letter in 
the Introductory Section of this report and with the City's financial statements, which begin on page 12. 

Financial Highlights and Significant Events 

o On a government-wide basis, the assets, and defen-ed outflows ofresources of the City exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources for the most recent fiscal year by $ 40,540,554. The 
City has an unrestricted net position totaling $ 10,953,425 which can be used to fund the City's 
functions/programs . 

o As of December 31, 2024, governmental activities and business-type activities had net positions of 
$ 22,857,255 and$ 17,683,299, respectively. 

0 At the end of the cmTent fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $ 11,984,766, an increase of $ 1,593,463 in comparison with the prior year. 
Approximately 46.34 percent or $ 5,553,295 is available for discretionmy spending by the City. 
The remaining fund balance is either restricted by outside parties or not in spendable f01m. 

o The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund,$ 5,553,295, is 100.00% of total General Fund 
expenditures, and is an increase in comparison with the prior year unassigned fund balance. 

0 The City's long-tenn debt obligations decreased by$ 1,255,918 or 5.85% as compared to fiscal year 
2023 . 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Marshfield's basic 
financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: l) government­
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains supplementruy infmmation in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
City of Marshfield's finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. All governmental and 
business-type activities are consolidated to an-ive at a total for the City. There are two government-wide 
statements, the statement of net position and the statement of activities, which are described below. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, liabilities, and defeITed 
inflows/outflows, with the difference between the two repmted as net position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is 
improving or deteriorating. 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during 
the current fiscal year. All changes in net assets are repmted as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
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171e Statement of Activities presents infonnation showing how the government's net assets changed during 
the current fiscal year. All changes in net assets are repo11ed as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flm11s. Thus, revenues and expenses are repo11ed 
in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected 
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Marshfield that are 
principally suppo11ed by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant po11ion of their costs through user fees and charges 
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, judiciary, 
public safety, transpo11:ation, culture and recreation. The business-type activities include the Water and 
Sewer systems. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15 and 16 of this repo11. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control and accountability over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Some funds are required to be established by 
State law, while others are established to help control and manage money for a pmiicular purpose. The 
City's two kinds offunds are as follows: 

• Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are repo1ied in governmental funds , which 
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are 
available for spending. These funds are repo1ied using the accrual method of accounting, which 
measures cash when earned and expenditures incurred . The governmental fund statements provide 
a detailed short-term v iew of the City's general government operations and the basic services it 
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine · whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 'the City's programs. We describe 
the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (rep01ied in the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation at the bottom 
of the fund financial statements. 

The City of Marshfield adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds and a comparison of 
actual to budget has been provided to demonstrate compliance with the authorized budget. The 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance on a Budgetary Basis can be 
found on pages 53-54 and 57. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements (Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance) can be found on pages 17-20 of this report. 

• Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are 
generally repo1ied in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all 
activities are rep011ed in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the 
City's enterprise fund is the same as the business-type activities we repo1i in the government-wide 
statements but provides more detail and additional information, such as cash flows . The basic 
proprietary fund financial statements (Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows) can be found on pages 21 -23 of this 
repo11. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on 
pages 24-51 of this report. 

Required Supplemental Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements the required supplementary information can be found on pages 
52-56 of this report with the supplementary information on pages 57. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

Net Position. As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred 
inflows by$ 40,393,411 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

The City's net investment in capital assets (land, construction in progress, buildings, equipment, 
improvements, and infrastructure) totals$ 22,409,624 As capital assets, these resources are not available for 
future spending, nor can they be readily liquidated to pay off their related liabilities. Resources needed to 
repay capital-related debt must be provided from other sources. 

Cu1Tent Assets and other assets $ 
Capital Assets 

Total Assets 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred pension related 
Total Defened Outflows 

Current Liabilities 
Long-term Debt 

Total Liabilities 
Deferred Inflows 

Deferred pension re lated 
Defe1Ted related to lease 

Total Defe1Ted Inflows 
Net Position: 

Net investment in 
capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 
Total net position $ 

City of Marshfield's Net Position 
Governmental Activities 

2024 
12,916,766 
22,879,486 
35,796,252 

600,953 
600,953 

526,941 
12,441,566 
12,968,507 

66,474 
504,969 
571,443 

11,158,847 
6,431,471 
5,266,937 

22,857,255 

2023 
$ 12,622,001 

22,101,606 
34,723,607 

515,034 
515,034 

2,164,361 
12,415,028 
14,579,389 

68,660 
523,672 
592,332 

9,865,70 I 
5,819,894 
4,381,325 

$ 20,066,920 
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Business-t~ee Activities 
2024 2023 

$ 7,146,718 $ 7,496,126 
21,133,215 19,465,447 
28,279,933 26,961,573 

215,179 205,394 
215,179 205 ,394 

439,816 511,809 
10,152,665 10,775,001 
I 0,592,481 11,286,810 

38,990 30,931 
180,342 204,427 
2 I 9,332 235,358 

11,250,777 8,764,996 
746,034 833,742 

5 686,488 6,046,061 
$ 17,683,299 $ 15,644,799 

Total 
2024 

$ 20,063,484 $ 
44,012,70 I 

' 64,076,185 

816,132 
816,132 

966,757 
22,594,231 
23,560,988 

105,464 
685,311 
790,775 

22,409,624 
7,177,505 

10,953,425 
$ 40,540,554 $ 

2023 
20,118,127 
41,567,053 
61,685,180 

720,428 
720,428 

2,676,170 
23,190,029 
25,866,199 

99,591 
762,665 
862,256 

18,630,697 
6,653,636 

10,427,386 
35,711,719 



City of Marshfield 
Changes in Net Position 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis-continued 

An additional po1tion of the City's net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions 
on how they may be used. The remain ing balance of unrestricted net position $ 10,806,282 is explained 
fu1ther below. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to repo1t positive balances in both categories of net 
position for the City as a whole. The reporting model includes the reporting of the City's infrastructure as a 
capital asset, including assets acquired retroactive to 1980. 

Changes in Position. The City's total net position increased by$ 4,681,692. This increase in net position 
is a result of continued economic growth . Key elements to the changes in net position follow: 

Governmental Activities Total 
2024 2023 

Business-type Activities 
2024 2023 2024 2023 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 

Charge for services 
Operating granls 

and contribut ions 
Capital grants and 

contributions 

General Revenues: 
Taxes 
Interest 
Other 
Total Revern,c 

$ 450,602 $ 463 ,981 $ 3,730,529 $ 3,932,013 

1.698,342 13,906 4,800 11 , I 00 

6,481l,.'iOS 
494,088 

9,i.054 
9,221,59 1 

5,674,922 
165,612 
29,414 

6,347,835 
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324,035 127,630 

4,059,364 4,070,743 

$ 4, 181 , 131 $ 4,395 ,.994 

l, 703,142 25 ,, 006 

6,484,505 
818,123 

94 ,054 

13,280,955 

5,674,922 
293,24?. 

29.'1l4 
10,418,578 



Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 

Expenses: 
Administration 576,526 464 ,843 576,526 
Law and public safety 1,522,767 1.3 85,546 1,522,767 
Streets 1,394,454 1,414,650 1,394,454 
Municipal court 137,994 128,093 137,994 
Building inspection 135.300 128,591 135,300 
Animal control 40,619 39,174 40,6 19 
Cemetery 169,031 166,922 169.031 
Park 756,408 981,832 756,408 
Interest 493 ,388 466,696 493,388 
Water 1,7 12,507 1,410,567 1,712,507 
Sewer 1,660,269 1,408,387 1,660,269 

Total Expense 5,226,487 5,176,347 3,372,776 2,818,954 8,599,263 

Increase (decrease) in net 
position before transfers 3,995.104 1, 171,488 686,588 1,251,789 4,681 ,692 

Transfers (1,204.769) 95,317 1,204,769 (95,317) 

Change in Net Position 2,790,335 1,266,805 1,891,357 1, 156,472 4,681,692 

Net Position, beginning-Restatec 20,066,920 18,800,115 15,791,942 14,635,470 35,858,862 

Net Position, ending $ 22,857,255 $ 20,066,920 $ 17,683,299 $ 15,791,942 $ 40,540,554 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City' s net position by$ 2,790,335, thereby 
accounting for 59.60% of the total growth in the net position of the City. Compared to last year's growth for 
Governmental activities, this was an increase of$ 1,523,530, which was most notable due to an increase in 
Law and Public Safety Sales Tax due to a full year of collections $ 932,093, interest earned on investments 
due to higher return for one year of$ 328,476 and grants received in 2024 versus 2023 year . 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $ 1,891,357 thereby 
accounting for 40.40% of the total grov.rth in the net position of the City. This was an increase of$ 734,885 
over the prior year. This was due to a decrease in operating income of$ 728,275 and netted with that a 
transfer of ARPA funds for capital improvements of$ 1,299,740. 
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$ 

2023 

464.843 
1,385,546 
1,414,650 

128 ,093 
128,59 1 
39, 174 

166,922 
981,832 
466 ,696 

1.410,567 
1,408,387 
7,995,30 I 

2,423,277 

2,423,277 

33,435,585 

35 ,858,862 



In reviewing the current to the past year on the Water and Sewer Funds, we noted the following : 

Chancre 

2024 2023 Amount % 

Water Fund 
Revenue $ 1,742,377 $ 1,864,251 $ (121,874) -6 .54% 

Expense net of Depreciation 1,316,707 1,013,353 303,354 29 .94% 

Operating Income 157,926 612,343 (454,417) -74.21% 
Sewer Fund 

Revenue 1,964,067 2,042,368 (78,301) -3 .83% 

Expense net of Depreciation 1,226,631 983,009 243 ,622 24.78% 

Operating lncorne (Loss) 460,952 797,720 (336,768) -42 .22% 

Financial Analysis of the City of Marshfield's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with legal or finance-related 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

· The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on the near-term inflows, outflovis, 
and balances of spendable resources. [n pa1ticu lar, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure 
of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

Governmental fund balance is repo1ted in five separate categories: Nonspendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unass igned . Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent for legal or 
practical reasons. Examples include prepaid items and inventory . Restricted fund balance includes amounts 
restricted to specific purposes by external patties such as amounts restricted for specific purposes such as 
streets and parks. 

Committed fund balance includes amounts that have been set aside by the City Council for a specific 
purpose prior to the end of the fiscal year. Assigned fund balance includes amounts that have been set aside 
by the City Council for a specific purpose, but subsequent to the end of the fiscal year. Unassigned fund 
balance includes all remaining amounts. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds repo1ted a combined ending fund 
balance of $ 11,984,766 with an increase of $ 1,593,463 compared to the prior fiscal year increase of 
$ 417,951 . Of the total balance,$ 6,431 ,471 is restricted, and$ 5,553,295 unassigned . 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the General 
Fund repo1ted a fund balance of$ 5,553,295 of which$ 5,553,295 is unassigned. 

Fund balance of the General Fund increased $ 907,788 as compared to the prior year of$ 4 I 9 ,40 I over the 
prior year as compared to the prior year totals were increased in due to a full year collections of Public 
Safety Sales tax of$ 784,866, increased earnings on investments of$ 175,587 offset with increase in capital 
expenditures of$ 248,697. 
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The fund balance of the Transpo1tation Sales Tax Fund increased$ 352,705 as compared to the prior year of 
a decrease of ($ 166,235) which was attributable to an increase in investment earnings of $ 69,914, 
miscellaneous income of$ 69,914 and a decrease of transfer of$ 35,000 to the Debt Service Fund and an 
increase in capital outlay of$ 422,228 . 

The Park Fund balance increased $ 325,362 as compared to the prior year of$ 173,589 which was due in 
part to decrease in debt payment of$ 208,120 and lower operating costs. 

The Debt Service Fund balance increase $ 15,320 as compared to the prior year of$ 39,370 which was 
difference in transfers from the Transpo1tation Sales Tax Fund for debt payment and the principal and 
interest paid in 2024. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position in the City's major proprietary funds totaled the following: $ 1,749.898 in the 
Water Fund and$ 3,936,590 in the Sewer Fund. The finances of these funds were discussed earlier as part 
of the business-type activities. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The City's 2024 budget was adopted on December 7, 2023. The General Fund revenue budget was 
$3,633,156 and the expenditure budget was $4,672,773. As the year progressed, the Council amended the 
General Fund expenditures to $5 ,139,776. The actual General Fund expenditures were 30% less than the 
amended budgeted amount. This is due to some of the budgeted expenditures and capital projects being 
carried over to the City's 2025 budget. These carryovers include the City Hall remodel and expansion, a 
new roof for the Police Department/Street Department building, and three Police Depattment vehicles that 
were expected to be delivered in 2023 but were delivered in 2024. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital assets. T he City of Marshfield's investment in cap ita l assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of December 3 1, 2024, amounts to$ 44,012,701 (net of accumu lated depreciation). T his 
investment in capita l assets includes land, bui ldi ngs, machinery, equipment, vehicles, roads, water and 
sewer treatment plants . The t·otal increase in capital assets for the current year was approximate ly 5.88%. 

Land 
Construction in 

Progress 
Plant 
Bui ldings 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

$ 

Governmenta l activities 
2024 2023 

899,533 $ 

678,807 

4,815,827 
15,649,]36 

358,262 
477,92 1 

899,533 

119,559 

5,021,08 I 
15,555,775 

191 ,063 
314,595 

$ 

Business-type activities 
2024 2023 

617,083 $ 

11, 179,674 
8,502,070 

464,776 
369,612 

617,083 

10,019,231 
7,949,616 

466,404 
413, 113 

$ 

Total 
2024 
1,516,6 I 6 $ 

11,858,481 
8,502,070 
4,8 I 5,827 

15,649, 136 
823,038 
847,533 

2023 
1,516,616 

10,138,790 
7,949,6 16 
5,021,081 

15,555,775 
657,467 
727,708 

$ 22,879,486 $ 22, 101,606 $ 2 1, 133 ,2 15 $ 19,465,447 $ 44,012,701 $ 4 1,567,053 

Information on the Ci ty's cap ital assets can be fo und in Note D of the notes to the fi nancial statements of 
this repo1t. 

Long-term Debt 

At year-end, the City had $ 20,207,357 outstanding notes as compared to the prior year of$ 21,463 ,275. 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 
Revenue Bonds $ $ 9,205,039 $ 9,997,000 $ 9,205,039 $ 9,997,000 
G.O. Bonds 8,365,000 8,795,000 8,365,000 8,795 ,000 
Certificate of Part. 2,485,000 2,585,000 2,485 ,000 2,585 ,000 
Lease Obligations 152,3 18 86,275 152,318 86,275 

TOTALS $ 11,002,3 18 $ I 1,466,275 $ 9,205,039 $ 9,997,000 $ 20,207,357 $ 2 1,463,275 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be fo und in Note E of the notes to the financial 
statements of this report. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The City of Marshfield's FY25 Operating Budget identifies a total of $16,711 ,943 in revenues and 
$18,003,596 in expenses, which includes the sewer infrastrncture project. The State of Missouri 
appropriated $5 million to the City of Marshfield for the sewer extension and facility improvements through 
reimbursements. The project is estimated to cost more than $7 million. 

The City's General Fund FY25 Operating Budget revenues are projected to be $3,953,463, including 
transfers in, and $3,8668,032 in expenses, including transfers out and encumbrances. Transfers into the 
General Fund include PILOT transfers from the Water and Sewer Funds. Transfers out of the General Fund 
include encumbered rent revenues for future use, specifically for remodeling City Hall. The General Fund 
provides funding for the City's General Administration Department, Street Depa1tment, Police Depa1tment, 
Municipal Court, Building and Code Enforcement Department, and Animal Control. 

The City' s General Administration Depaitment budgeted expenditures are $575,857 for operations and 
maintenance. Street Depa1tment revenues are $331,000 and expenditures are $600,390. The Police 
Depaitment revenues are $965,044 and expenditures are $2,277,525 plus transferring $95,560 into a Repair 
& Replacement Account for repairing and replacing vehicles and equipment. The Municipal Court revenues 
are budgeted as $24,000 and expenditures are $40,05 I . During Fiscal Year 2024, the Marshfield Municipal 
Comt was transferred to the Associate Division of the Circuit Comt of Webster County which will reduce 
the budgeted revenues and expenses going forward . The Building and Code Enforcement Depaitment 
revenues are projected to be $55,850 and the expenditures as $205,929. Revenues and expenditures are 
budgeted as an increase in FY25 due to a new subdivision development. Animal Control Depaitment 
revenues are budgeted as $1 ,800 and expenditures as $52,872. 

General Fund FV25 Operating Budget 

Total General Fund 

General Administration 

Police Department 

Street Department 

Building & Code Enforcement ~ 

Municipal Court I 
Animal Control ■ 

Transfers In/Out a 
$- $500,000 $1,000,000$1,500,000$2,000,000$2,500,000$3,000,000$3,500,000$4,000,000 

■ Revenues ■ Expenses 

April 2023 , voters of the City approved an increase in the general sales tax by one-half percent for the 
purpose of improving public safety, including, but not limited to, hiring additional police officers and staff, 
acquiring additional police vehicles and related equipment, and constructing and renovating police 
department facilities. The tax increase will go into effect October 1, 2023 . The additional sales tax revenues 
are budgeted entirely in the Police Department Budget. 
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The Parks Fund revenues are budgeted as $1 ,375,673 and expenditures are $1,346,120, which includes the 
principal and interest debt service payments of $188,544 and $200,000 being set aside for funding an 
Activity Center. While slowing down, the steady growth of sales tax revenue is a large prut of the increased 
revenues from FY24. Increase in expenses includes minimum wage increases, specifically for the summer 
pait-time employees and increased cost of supplies . 

The City's Wastewater Treatment Plant Fund (Sewer Fund) revenues are budgeted as $1,728,750, 
expenditures at $1,697,147. The Sewer Fund expenses include $604,052 from the Sewer Repair and 
Replacement (R&R) account for repairing and replacing sewer lines, manholes, cured-in-place pipe lining, 
cleaning existing easements and a new camera truck. The R&R account is being funded to use for repairing 
and replacing aging equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure. Through a rate study completed in 2021 , Sewer 
user rates increased 7% for FY25. 

The Water Fund revenues are budgeted as $1.409,455 and expenses as $1 ,408,610 which includes 
transferring $120,000 to the Water Repair & Replacement account. The Water Fund expenses include 
$247,059 from the Water Repair & Replacement account for painting a water line replacement and some 
engineering. Through the same rate study discussed above, the Water user rates increased 2% for FY25. 
Overall supplies a11d materials continue to increase, which is shown in the budget. 

The Water and Sewer Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) revenues come from a monthly capital improvement 
fee added to each customer's bill to be used to pay for capital improvements and debt service for such 
improvements. The Water CIP revenues are budgeted as $207,823 and expenditures as $172,414 which 
includes a transfer of $83,000 for the Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan debt service. The WWTP CIP 
revenues are budgeted as $5,333,447 and expenditures as $6,069,710. The State of Missouri has 
appropriated $5,000,000 to the City for sewer expansion and infrastructure improvements. The 
appropriation is through reimbursement. 

$7,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$-

Water and Sewer FY25 Budgets 

I I 
Water -Water CIP 

II 
Sewer 

■ Expenses (less transfer to Repair & Replacement Account) 
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The Transp01tation Fund revenues are budgeted as $1,356,604 and expenditures as $1 ,402,775. Revenues 
indude $347,258 reimbursement for the Transportation Alternatives Program Grant (TAP) awarded to the 
City for construction of ADA compliant sidewalks. Expenditures include $380,000 transfer out for the 
general obligation bonds debt service payments, and $514,675 for the TAP sidewalks project. 

The FY25 Budget identifies $2,992,454 in Growth Areas expenditures. Growth Areas are capital asset 
needs, infrastructure maintenance and upgrades, and other needs of the city that are in addition to the 
Operating Budget and require additional Board approval before proceeding. Some of the identified Growth 
Areas that are projected to be cost shared by departments and funds include remodeling and expanding City 
Hall, vehicles, and equipment. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial repo1t is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general 
overview of the City ' s finances and to show the City' s accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Office at 798 S. 
Marshall Street, Marshfield, Missouri 

Monica Robinson, 
Finance Director 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF NET POS ITJON 

DECEMBER 3 1. 2024 

Governmental Business-type 

ASSETS Activities Activities 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,834,435 $ 5,793,003 

Receivables, net 

Taxes 1,556,947 

Util ities 44 1,436 

Restricted assets-Cash and cash equ ivalents 

Debt reserves 72 1,959 

Lease receivab le 525,384 190,320 

Capital assets : 

Land 899,533 6 I 7,083 

Construct ion in progress 678,807 11, 179,674 

Other capital assets, net of accumu lated deprec iation 21,30 1,1 46 9,336,458 

Total Assets 35,796,252 28,279,933 

DEFERRED OUTFLOW or RESOURCES 

Pension re lated 600,953 2 15, 179 

LIAB ILITIES 

Accounts payable 6,90 1 

Accrued wages and payro ll taxes 85,266 34, 175 

Accrued interest 16 1,457 11 6,626 

Unearned revenue 280,2 18 

Customer deposi ts 282, 11 4 

Noncurrent Liabi lities: 

Due within one year: 

Long-term debt, compensated absences 660,72 1 293,563 

Due in more than one year: 

Net pension li ab il ity 507,730 I 85,51 1 

Long-term debt 11,273,1 15 9,673,59 1 

Total Liabi lities 12,968,507 I 0,592,48 1 

DEFERRED INFLOW or RESOURCES 

Deferred inflow of resources related to pensions 66,474 38,990 

Deferred in flow re lated to lease 504,969 180,342 

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 57 1,443 2 I 9,332 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in cap ital assets 11 ,158,847 11.250,777 

Restricted 

Debt 478,402 746,034 

Streets 2,864,90 I 
Cemetery 627,724 

Parks 2,460,444 
Unrestr icted 5,266,937 5,686,488 

Total Net Position $ 22,857,255 $ 17,683,299 

See the accompanying notes to the financial st'itements . 
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Total 

$ 16,627,438 

1,556,947 

44 1,436 

72 1,959 
715,704 

1,516,616 

11,858,48 1 

30,637,604 

64,076, 185 

8 16, 132 

6,90 1 
I 19,44 1 

278,083 

280,2 18 
282, I 14 

954,284 

693,24 1 

20,946,706 

23,560,988 

105,464 

685,3 11 
790,775 

22,409,624 

1,224,436 

2,864,90 I 
627,724 

2,460,444 

I 0,953,425 

$ 40,540,554 



Functions/Programs ~ens es 
Governmental activities : 

General government $ 576,526 
Law and public safety 1,522,767 
Street 1,394 ,454 
Municipal court 137,994 
Building inspections 135,300 
Animal control 40,619 
Cemetery 169,031 
Park 756,408 
Interest on long-term debt 493,388 

Total governmental activities 5,226,487 

Business-type activities : 

Water 1,712,507 
Sewer 1,660,269 

Total business-type activities 3,372,776 

Total Government $ 8,599,263 

CITY OF MARSHFCELD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER JI 2024 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental 

Services Contributions Contributions Activities 

$ 38,650 $ $ 1,299,740 $ 761,864 
42,165 (1 ,480,602) 

47, 102 (1,347,352) 
(137,994) 

51 ,452 (83 ,848) 
(40,6 I 9) 

51,350 (117,681) 
266,985 351,500 (137,923) 

(493,388) 
450,602 1,698,342 (3 ,077,543) 

I ,766,462 
l,964,067 4,800 
3,730,529 4,800 

$ 4,181 , 131 $ $ 1,703,142 (3 ,077543) 

General Revenues and Tranfers 

General Revenues 
Prope11y taxes levied for cemetery [47,099 
Property taxes levied for debt service 434,476 
Property taxes levied for parks 123 ,661 
Franchise taxes 35 1,212 
Sales taxes 5,019,691 
Missouri motor fuel taxes 408,366 
Interest and dividends 494,088 
Miscellaneous 94,054 

Transfers (1,204,769) 
Total general revenues and transfers 5,867,878 

Change in net position 2,790,335 

Net position beginning-Restated 20,066,920 

Net position ending $ 22,857,255 

See the accompanying nmcs to the financial statements. 
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Changes in Net Position 

Business-type 

Activities 

$ $ 

53,955 
308,598 
362,553 

362,553 

324,035 

l,204,769 
1,528,804 

1,89 I ,357 

[5,791 ,942 

$ 17,683,299 $ 

Total 

761 ,864 
(1,480,602) 
(1 ,347,352) 

(137,994) 
(83,848) 
(40,619) 

(117,681) 
(137,923) 
(493,388) 

(3,077,543) 

53,955 
308,598 
362,553 

{2,714,990) 

147,099 
434,476 
123,661 
35 1,212 

5,019,691 
408,366 
818,123 
94,054 

7,396,682 

4,681 ,692 

35,858,862 

40,540,554 



ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable-

Sales lax 

Franchise tax 

Motor fuel taxes 

Property taxes-net 
Lease receivable 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Accrued wages and benefits 

Unearned revenue-grants 

Total Liabilit ies 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Unavailable property tax revenue 

Deferred inflows-lease 
Total deferred inflow of resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted for: 

Debt 
Streets 

Cemetery 

Parks 

Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEfERRED INfLOWS OF RESOURCES 
AND flJND BALANCES 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
_DECEMBF.R 3 i. 2024 

General Transportation Park 

Fund Sales Tax Fund fund 

$ 5,219,120 $ 2,692,529 $ 2,210,980 

54 1,366 172,372 i72)72 

53,404 

70,467 

99,066 

525,3 ~4 . ----·--

$ 6,409,74! $ 2)!64,90! $ 2,482,418 

$ 71 ,259 $ $ 10,828 
280,218 

351,477 10,828 

11 , 146 

504,969 
504,969 11 , 146 

2,864,901 

2,460,444 

5,553,295 

5,553,295 2,864,901 2,460,444 

$ 6,409,74 l $ 2,864,90 i $ 2,482,4 I 8 

Sec the accompanyii.g notes to the financ ial statements. 
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Nonmajor 
Debt Fund Total 

Service Cemetery Govemmcntal 

f-und Fund Funds 
$ 184,843 $ 526,963 $ 10,834,435 

886,110 

53,404 

70,467 

330,783 l i'i,i l7 546,966 

525,384 

$ 515,626 $ 644,080 $ 12,9 16,766 

$ $ 3, 179 $ 85,266 

280,218 
3,179 365,484 

37,224 13, 177 61,547 
504,969 

37,224 I3 , i77 566,516 

478,402 478 ,402 

2,864,901 
627,724 627,724 

2,460,444 

5,553,295 

478,402 627,724 11,984,766 

$ 5 i 5,626 s 644,080 $ 12,9 i 6,766 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENT FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE 

ST A TEMENT OF NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 3 I, 2024 

Total Fund Balances-Governmental Funds $ 11,984,766 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental 

activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 

as assets in the governmental funds. 

Non-depreciable assets 

Depreciable assets 

1,578,340 

21,301,146 

Property taxes assessed by the City, but not collected as of year end, 

are deferred within the fund financial statements. However, revenue 

for this amount is recognized in the government-wide statements. 

Net pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and 

therefore are not reported in the funds . 

Net pension liability 

Deferred outflows - pension related 

Deferred inflows - pension related 

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental 

funds , but issu ing debt increases long,-term liabilities in the same 

statement of net position. Repayment of bond principal is an 

expenditure in the governmental funds , but the repayment reduces 

long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Lease payable 

Certificate of participation 

General Obligation bond 

Liabilities and premium on debt issuance are recognized only when due in 

the governmental fund statements but are accrued in the government-wide 

statements. 

Compensated absences 

Unamortized bond premium 

Accrued interest. 

22,879,486 

61 ,547 

(507,730) 

600,953 
(66,474) 

( 1.52,3 18) 

(2,485,000) 

(8,365,000) 

(213 , 197) 

(718,321) 

(161,457) 

Net position of governmental activities $ 22,857,255 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Franchise taxes 
S.i.lcs taxes 

[ntcrgovcmmcntnl ; 
Missouri motor fuel ta.x(!s 
Financial inslitutlonal ta:,,: 

User charges: 
Ccmch,!l)'~saic ofp!ots &: grave opcnint,;s 
Pnrk nctivity fees 

Licenses & pcnnits 
Fines & forfeitures 
Interest and dividends 
Grants 
Rent 
i\:f isccl lnncous 

Tol:11 Rc\'cnucs 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Gcncr.i.l govcmmcnt 
Lnw nncl public safely-

Police 
l\•lunicipal court 

Street 
Building inspection 
Animal control 
Cemetery 
Park 

Capital outlay 
Dcbl service: 

Principal 
Interest nncl ngcnts fees 

Tolal Expenditures 

EXCESS (DErlCIT) OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Tr:msfcrs In 
Tr:msfcrs Out 
Lenses ( as lessee) 
Rci111burscrncn1 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

s 

s 

COVERNMi:NTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2024 

Gcncrnl Transportation Pnrk 
fund S:ilcs Tnx Fun<l fund 

s s 124.293 
35 i ,212 

3,06•. 155 9Ti.7F i 977,755 

408 ,366 
3,389 

266,985 
71.399 
42,165 

156.547 107.323 93.63 2 
1.299.740 47.i02 

18.703 
15,195 GS.595 5.25 1 

5.530.871 i.200.80 I !.467.916 

422,962 

1,509,135 
137.994 
538,64 1 129.101 
135,300 
40,479 

530,405 
689.474 422,228 772.341 

38,475 I 00.000 
10.372 9 1,3 08 

3.522 .832 551.329 1.494.054 

2.008.039 5➔ 9,472 (26. 138) 

94.971 
( 1.299.740) (390,000) 

i04.518 
93 ,233 351.500 

907.788 352., 705 325,362 

4.645.507 2.512.196 2.135.082 

5.553 .295 s 2.864. 90 ! s 2,460.444 

Sec the rtccompanying notes 10 the financiai s1a1cmcn1s. 
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s 

s 

~onr.1ajor 
Debt Fund Totnl 

Service Cemetery Govcmincntnl 

Fund rund runds 

436.588 s 147.846 s 708.727 
351,212 

5,0 l 9,69 i 

408,366 
3.389 

5, )50 51,350 
266.985 

71 ,399 
42,165 

I0,420 26,166 49US8 
1,346,84 2 

I S,703 
20 i.604 90.665 

44 7.028 226 .966 8.873.582 

422.962 

1.509,135 
137,994 
667,742 
135.300 
40.H9 

164.007 164,007 
530,405 

70,67 1 1.954.714 

J30.000 568.475 
:;91.708 493 .388 
821,708 234.678 6.624.60i 

(374.680) (7.712) 2.248.981 

390.000 484.97 i 
( 1.689.740) 

104,5 !8 
444 .733 

15.320 (7,7i2) 1.593 ,463 

·163.082 63 5.436 I 0.39 1.303 

478.402 s 627.724 S 11 .984.766 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds $ 1,593,463 
Amounts repo11ed for governmental activities in the statement 

of activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures . 

However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets 

are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay 

Depreciation expense 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use 

of current financial resources and, therefore, are not rep011ed as 

expenditures in the governmental funds 

Change in pension expense 

Change in compensated absences 
Amortization on bond premium 

Change in accrued interest 

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after 

the City's fiscal year ends, they are not considered "available" revenues and 

are deferred in the governmental funds . Unavailable revenues increased 

by this amount this year. 

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental 

funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the same 

statement of net position. Repayment of bond principal is an 

Lease issued 

Payment on long term debt 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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1,954,714 

(1,176,835) 

(75,216) 

(34,074) 

51,309 
16,507 

(3,490) 

(104,518) 

568,475 

$ 2,790,335 



ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equ ivalents 
Accounts receivable utilities, net 
Lease receivable 
Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets : 
Restricted Assets : 

Cash for debt reserves 
Capital Assets: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF NET POS IT[ON 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31 2024 

Business-type Activities 
Water Sewer 
Fund Fund 

$ i ,892,7 13 $ 3,900,290 
254,664 186,772 
190,320 

2,337,697 4,087,062 

721,959 

I 05,543 511,540 
5,298,207 5,881,467 

Other capital assets , net of accum ul ated depreciation 5,062,392 4,274,066 
Total Noncurrent Assets 11,188, 10 I I 0,667,073 

Total Assets 13 ,525,798 14,754, 135 

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 
Pension related I 01,083 114,096 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liab il ities: 

Accounts payable 6,901 
Accrued wages 16,030 18, 145 
Compensated absences 3,897 4,575 
Accrued interest 34,988 8 I ,638 
Customer deposits 282, 114 
Bonds payable -current 259,G39 26,052 

Total Current Liabi lities 602,969 130,410 

Noncurrent Liabi lities: 

Compensated absences 35 ,073 41 ,171 
Bonds payable 4,28 1,000 5,316,347 
Net pension liability 87,146 98 ,365 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,403,2 19 5,455,883 

Total Liabilities 5,006, I 88 5,586,293 

DEFERRED INPLOW OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflow of resources related to pens ions ! 8,3 I 6 20,674 
Deferred inflow -lease 180,342 

Total deferred in tlow of resource 198,658 20,674 

NET POS IT[ON 
Net investment in capital assets 5,926,103 5,324,674 
Restricted-

Debt reserves 746,034 
Unrestric ted 1,749,898 3,936,590 

Total Net Position $ 8,422,035 $ 9,26 1,264 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 
$ 5,793,003 

44 1,436 
190,320 

6,424,759 

72 1,959 

617,083 
11, 179,674 
9,336,458 

21,855 , 174 

28,279,933 

215, 179 

6,901 
34,175 

8,472 
116,626 
282, 114 
285,09 I 
733,379 

76,244 
9,597,347 

I 85,51 1 
9,859,102 

I 0,592,48 1 

38,990 
180,342 
219,332 

11,250,777 

746,034 
5,686,488 

$ 17,683,299 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -

PROPR IETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2024 

Bus iness-type Activ ities 

Water Sewer 

OPERATING REVENUES: Fund Fund 

Charges for services $ 1,742,377 $ 1,964,067 

Total Operating Revenues 1,742,377 1,964,067 

OP ERATING EXPENSES: 

Computer software and expenses 20,596 6,083 

Depreciati on 267,744 276,484 

Dues and training ] , 156 I ,035 

Gas and o il 15,736 18,228 

Insurance 20,324 36,587 

Office suppl ies and postage 9,457 9,418 

Professiona l fees 12,852 33,847 
Repairs & maintenance 567,913 345,463 
Salaries, benefits and retirement 559,210 639,203 

Suppli es 5, 149 9,924 

Telephone 6,637 5,280 
Train ing and safety 3,823 3,697 

Uniforms 6,097 5,508 
Ut il ities 80,353 I 00,774 

Vehicle expense 7,404 11,584 

Total Operating Expenses 1,584,451 1,503, 115 

OPERA TING INCOME 157,926 460,952 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) : 

Interest and d ividend income 123 ,304 200,73 1 

Rent income 24,085 

Interest expense and agents fee (128,056) (157, 154) 

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 19,333 43,577 

INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS AND GRANTS 177,259 504,529 

Transfer ( out) (382,234) (949,508) 

Transfers in 1,236,771 1,299,740 

Grants 4,800 

CHANGE IN NET POSJTION 1,031,796 859,56 1 

TOTAL NET POS ITION - BEG INN ING 7,390,239 8,401,703 

TOT AL NET POS ITION - EN DING $ 8,422,035 $ 9,261,264 

See the accompanyi ng notes to th e financial statements . 
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Total 

Enterprise 

Funds 

$ 3,706,444 

3,706,444 

26,679 

544,228 

2, 191 

33,964 

56,9 11 

18,875 

46,699 

913,376 

I ,I 98,413 

15,073 

11,917 

7,520 

11 ,605 
18 1,127 

I 8,988 

3,087,566 

618,878 

324,035 

24,085 

(285,2 10) 

62,910 

68 1,788 

( I ,331,742) 

2,536,5 I I 

4,800 

1,89 1,357 

I 5,79 1,942 

$ 17,683,299 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 l . 2024 

Business-type Activit ies 

Water 
CASI-I FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES fund 

Receipts from customers $ 1,742,377 $ 
Payments to suppliers (666,433) 
Payments to employees (559,2 l 0) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 516,73 11 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVIT IES 
Transfers (Out)-Fee In Lieu of taxes to General Fund (382,234) 
Transfers In 1,236,771 
Grants 
Rent income 24,085 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapi tal Financi ng Activ it ies 878 ,622 

CAS!-1 FLOWS fROM CA PITAL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTIV ITIES: 
Acquis.ition of capita l assets ( l , l 03,002) 
Principal paid (791,96 1) 
Interest pa id (1 28,056) 

Net Cash (Used fo r) Capital and 

Related Financing Activ ities (2,023 ,0 19) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACT!VlTJES : 

Interest and dividend earned 123,304 
Net Cash Provided by Investin g .i\ ctivitics 123,304 

N ET CASH (DECREASE) INCREASE FOR TH E Y EAR (504,359) 

CASI-I AT BEGINNING OF Y. EAR 3,119,031 

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 2,6 14,672 $ 

CAS H SUMMARY 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,892,713 $ 

Res tricted assets-cash and cash equ iva lents 72 1,959 

Total $ 2,614,672 $ 

Reconciliat ion of operating income tu net cash 

provided by operati ng act ivi ties: 

Operating Income $ 157,926 $ 

Adjustments to reconc ile net operating income 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 267,744 
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid items 37,963 
(Increase) Decrease in receivables 17,109 

(Increase) Decrease in deferred outflow of resources (4,412) 

(Decrease) Increase in accounts payable 1,989 
(Decrease) In crease in accrued wages, taxes, etc. 2,8 17 
(Decrease) Increase in pension liabi lities 51 ,104 
(Decrease) Increase in deferred inflow of resources (20,327) 
Increase in meter deposits 4,. 82 1 

Net Cash Provided by Operat ing Ac ti vities $ 516,734 $ 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Sewer 

fu nd 

1,964,067 
(485,708) 

(639,203) 

839,156 

(949,508) 

1,299,740 

4,800 

355,032 

( l , l 08,994) 

(26,052) 

(157,154) 

( 1,292,200) 

200,73 l 

200,73 l 

102,7 19 

3,797,57 1 

3,900,290 

3,900,290 

3,900,290 

460,952 

276,484 

43 , 10 1 

(3,262) 

(5,373) 

5, 123 

57,830 

4,30 I 

839, 156 

Total 

Enterprise 

Funds 
$ 3,706,444 

( l , 152, l 4 l) 
( l , 198,4 13) 

1,355,890 

(1 ,33 1,742) 

2,536,511 

4,800 

24,085 

1,233,654 

(2,2 l l , 996) 

(818 ,0 13) 

(285,210) 

(3,3 15,219) 

324,035 
324,035 

( 40 l ,640) 

6,916,602 

$ 6,5 14,962 

$ 5,793 ,003 

72 1,959 

$ 6,5 I 4,962 

$ 6 18,878 

544,228 

81 ,064 

13,847 

(9,785) 

1,989 

7,940 

I 08,934 

(16,026) 

4,821 

$ 1,355,890 



CITY OF lVIARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 I. 2024 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Marshfield (the City) were prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental entities 
(U.S . GAAP). The following summary of the more significant policies of the City is presented to 
assist the reader in interpreting these financial statements and should be viewed as an integral patt 
of this repo1t. 

THE REPORTING ENTITY 

Entity status for financial reporting purposes is governed by Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). The GASB is the standard-setting body for the establishment of GAAP in 
governmental entities. The financial statements of the City present the financial activities of the City 
and any component units. The City is the primary government unit. Component units are those 
entities which are financially accountable to the primary government, either because the City 
appoints a voting majority of the component unit's Board or because the component unit will 
provide a financial benefit or impose a financial burden on the City. The City does not have any 
component units. 

GOVERNMENT--WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all activities of the City. For the most patt, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements. Government-wide financial statements do not 
provide information by fund but distinguish between the City ' s governmental activities and 
business-type activities. Governmental activities, which normally are suppo1ted by taxes and 
intergovernrnental revenues, are repo1ted separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for suppo1t. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
are off.set by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function. Program revenues include I) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
pa1ticular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues. 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 1 _ 2024 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fund financial statements. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and 
proprietary funds . Separate columns are presented for each major governmental fund and for each major 
enterprise fund . Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column labeled "Nonmajor 
Governmental Funds." 

Governmental Fund Types: Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of 
the City are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the City ' s expendable financial resources and the 
related liabilities (other than those in proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The 
following are the City's major governmental funds : 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund . It is used to account for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund . 

Transpo1tation Sales Tax Fund 

. This fund was established to account for the proceeds of transportation sales tax that is legally restricted to 
expenditures for the purpose of street improvements, repairs and maintenance, and payment of 2024 
General Obligation Bond for street improvements. 

Park Fund 

This fund w as established to account for the proceeds of property tax revenue that is legally restricted to 
expenditures for the purpose of park and recreation activities . In addition , the City passed a one-half cent 
sales tax for park/storm water which is reported in this fund. 

Debt Service Fund 

This fund was established to account for the proceeds of property tax revenue that is legally restricted to 
expenditures for the purpose of retirement of principal, interest and agents' fees for general obligation 
bonds. 

Proprietary Fund Types: Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing activities that are 
similar to those often found in the private sector. The following are the City ' s major proprietary funds: 

Water Fund 

The Water Fund accounts for the operations of providing water services to the residents of the City. 

Sewer Fund 

The Sewer Fund accounts for the operations of providing sewer services to the residents of the City. 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Additionally, the government repo1ts the following nonmajor fund: 

Cemetery Fund 

This fund was established to account for the proceeds of prope1ty tax revenue and other sources 
that are legally restricted to expenditures for the purpose of operation of the City cemetery. 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The government-wide financial statements are repo1ted using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash transaction takes place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the 
City gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include 
prope1ty taxes, grants and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is 
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied . Revenue from grants and donations are 
recognized in th t: fi sca l year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied . 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus ·and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible with in the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal period . Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences, claims, and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Prope11y taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Only the pmtion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is 
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current fixed period . All other revenue 
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 1. 2024 

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges bet\veen the City's water and sewer 
function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include I) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. General revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operation, the principal operating 
revenues of the enterprise fund are charges for services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are av.ailable for use, it is the City's 
pol icy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

ASSETS) LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement ·and investment and to 
maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits 
and are considered cash and cash equivalents. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments 
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Investments 

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, federal agencies, 
commercial paper, corporate bonds, and repurchase agreements. Investments are stated at fair 
value. For the year ended the City had no certificates of deposits in excess of 90 days . 

Restricted Assets 

The City elects to use restricted assets before unrestricted assets when the situation arises where 
either can be used . Ce1tain assets are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited by 
applicable debt or other agreements. 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Due to and due from other funds 

Interfund receivables and payables arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds 
affected in the period in which transactions are executed. 

Inventories 

The purchase method is used to account for inventories. Under the purchase method, inventories 
are recorded as expenditures when purchased. 

Prepaid items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year-end are 
recorded as prepaid items. The cost of governmental fund-type prepaids is recorded as an 
expenditure when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Accounts receivable and Unbilled Usage 

Accounts receivables are stated at net with allowance for doubtful accounts of$ 3.,460 for water, 
$ 2,541 fo r sewer and a total of $ I 6,9 I 6 for prope1ty taxes. All other receivables represent 
amounts collected within 60 days and therefore no need for an allowance. Unbilled usage for 
services consumed between periodic billing dates is recognized as revenue in the period in which 
service is provided . 

Capital Assets and Depreciation 

Capital assets, which include prope11y, equipment, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are repo1ted in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the 
City as assets with an initial cost of more than $ 1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed . Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of 
donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of 
depreciation. The estimated useful lives for each major class of depreciable capital assets are as 
follows: 
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Capital Assets and Depreciation - continued 

Utility plants 

Buildings 

In frastru ctu re 

Furniture and equipment 

Vehicles 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

20 to 50 years 

40 years 

20 to 40 years 

5 to IO years 

5 to IO years 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes repo11 a separate section for 
deferred outflo·ws of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. At this time, the City has 
one item that meets the definition of deferred outflows of resources. This amount is related to 
pension outflows as per GASH 68. 

Deferred Inflows of Resources/Unavailable Revenue 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then. In the Governmental Funds the item 
repo11ed as a deferred inflow of resources arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is repo11ed only in the governmental funds balance 
sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from prope1ty taxes as these amounts 
are deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of resources in the period in which the amounts 
become available. 
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NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Deferred Inflows of Resources/Unavailable Revenue - continued 

At this time, the City has one item that meets the definition of deferred inflows of resources. It is the 
deferred gain on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position and the 
statement of net position for proprietary funds . The item is related to pension inflows as per GASB 
68. 

Obligation for Bond Arbitrage Rebate 

Pursuant to Section 148(f) of the U. S. Internal Revenue Code, the City must rebate to the United 
State Government the excess of interest earned from the investment of ce1tai11 debt proceeds and 
pledged revenues over the yield rate of the applicable debt. Arbitrage rebate, if any, is due and 
payable on each five--year anniversary of the respective debt issue. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of rescrnrces related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) and 
addition.;; to/deduc.:tions from LAGERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are rnported by LAGERS . For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 

• employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments arc reported at fair value. 

Leases 

The City is a lessor for leases of tower space. The City recognizes lease receivables and deferred 
inflows of resources in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

At the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease receivable at the present 
value of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease 
receivable is reduced by the principal po1tion of lease payments received. The deferred inflow of 
resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease 
payments received at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow 
of resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term . 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Long-term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position . Bond premiums and 
discounts, and losses on refunding are deferred and amotiized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed during the current period. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt 
issued is repo1ied as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. 
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are repo1ied as 
debt service expenditures. 

Fund Balances 

Fund balances are classified as follows : 

Nonspendable-This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
in a nonspendable form , or they are required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted-This classification includes amounts that can be spent only for specific 
purposes because of the City Charter, City Code, state or federal laws, or externally 
imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 

Committed-This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific 
purposes determined by a formal action by the City Council. Such formal action may be in 
the form of an ordinance and may only be modified or rescinded by a subsequent formal 
action. 

Assigned-This classification includes amounts that are intended by the City to be used 
for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. Assignments may be made 
only by the government body or official. 

Unassigned-This classification represents the residual pos1t1ve net resources of the 
General Fund in excess of what can properly be classified in one of the other four 
categories and include all deficit amounts in all other government funds. 

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet (page 
l 6). As discussed in Note A, restricted funds are used first as appropriate. Assigned Funds are 
reduced to the extent that expenditure authority has been budgeted by Council or the Assignment 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

has been changed by the Mayor. Decreases to fund balance first reduce Unassigned fund balance; 
in the event that Unassigned Fund Balance becomes zero, then Assigned and Committed Fund 
Balance are used in that order. 

Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of the cost of 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. This net 
investment in capital assets amount also is adjusted by any bond issuance deferral amounts. Net 
position is repo1ted as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through the 
enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. All other net position is repo1ted as 
unrestricted. 

The City applies restricted_ resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of basic fi nanc ial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles requires rnanagement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported 
in the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Compensated Absences 

City employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment. 
With minor exceptions,. compensated absences either vest or accumulate and are accrued when they 
are earned. 

Revenue Recognition 

Prope1iy Taxes 

Prope1ty taxes attach as an enforceable lien on prope1ty as of .January I. Taxes are levied on 
October I and are due and payable at that time. All unpaid taxes levied October I become 
delinquent .January I, of the following year. Levy for 2024 was $ .6044 with a valuation base of 
$ 111,111,589 broken down as follows: $ .1270 Cemetery,$ . I 074 Parks, and$ .3700 Debt Service. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Sales Taxes 

The City has four sales tax authorizations, a one cent C ity general sales tax, ½ cent transpo1tation 
tax that was voted to extend past the original 2024 deadline, ½ cent public safety, and a ½ cent 
park/storm water saies tax repo1ted in the park fund . 

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City is required by Missouri State Law RSMo I 05.485 to prepare a budget each year based 
on estimates of revenues and expected expenditures v.,hich include at a minimum a budget 
message, budget summary, schedule with prior year comparison of estimated revenue and 
expenditures, schedule of bonded debt obligations and budget approval letter. The accompanying 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance - budget and actual includes the 
budgeted expenditures fo r the year, along with management' s estimate of revenues for the year 
for both th e original budget and the final budget which is reflect ive of any amendments 
throughout the fi scal year . T'he lega l level of budgetary control is at the total fund level . 

Budgetary basis of accounting 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted account ing principles 
(modified accrual basis) for all governmental funds. 

Excess of expenditures over appropriations 

For the year ended December 31 , 2024, expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any of the 
Governmental Funds. 

Bond Reserve Compliance 

The City was in compliance with required bonded debt reserves for the year. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Debt restrictions 

General obligation debt 

Article VI, Sections 26 (b) and (c), Constitution of Missouri , limits the outstanding amount of 
authorized general obligation debt of a City to 20 percent of the assessed valuation of taxable 
tangible property as shown by the last completed assessment for state or county purposes. 
Authorization for debt is5uance requires four-sevenths at the general municipal election day, 
primary or general elections and two-thirds at all other elections, vote of the qualified electors 
thereof. The computed legal debt margin of the City on December 3 1, 2024, was: 

Const itutional D e bt Limit 

Outstanding GO. Bonds 

Legal debl margin 

Other long--tenn_cteh_~ 

$ 22,222, 178 

(8,365,000) 

$ 13,857,178 

Aiticle VI , Section 26 (a\ Constitution of Missouri, limits the outstanding indebtedness of a City 
without popula r vote to an amount exceeding in any year the income and revenue provided for such 
year plus any unencumbere.d balances from previous years . For the year ended December 31 , 2.024, 
the city was in comp liance w ith this requirement. 

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The City mainta ins a cash and investment account for each fund . Each fund account is displayed 
on the combined balance sheet as either "cash, investments, board designated investments, or bank 
overdrafts" . In addition, investments are separately held by several of the City's funds . Deposits and 
investments are stated at cost, which approximates market. 

Deposits. Certificates of deposit are classified as investments but are considered deposits for 
custodial risk determination. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the City ' s deposits may not be returned, or the City will not be able to recover collateral 
securities in the possession of an outside party. The City ' s bank deposits are required by state law 
to be secured by the deposit of ce1tain securities specified at RSMo 30.270 with the City or trustee 
institution . The value of the securities must amount to the total of the City' s cash not insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation . 

As of December 31, 2024, the City ' s bank balances were enti1'ely secured or collateralized with 
securities held by the City or by its agent in the City ' s name. 
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NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Investment Policies 

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. The City does have a written investment policy covering credit risk. 

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse 
interest rate changes. The City policy is to limit the length of investments to meet cash flow 
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities before maturity. 

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City ' s 
investment in a single issuer. The City is to invest in only those instruments approved by the 
State of Missouri which have minimal risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that in the event of a broker/agent failure, securities that are 
uninsured and not registered in the name of the City and are held by either the counterparty to the 
transaction or the c.ounterparty's trust depa1tment or agent but not in the government's name will 
not be returned to the City. The City does have a written investment policy on custodial credit 
risk in ,vhich all investments are either insured or registered in the City's name and held by the 
City's agerit. • • • ' 

NOTE C ·- RESTRICTED CASH/NET POSITION 

Restricted cash consisted of the following as of December 31, 2024: 

Cash Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
2020 Depreciation and Replacement $ 721 ,959 $ 746,034 
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NOTED-CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 3 I, 2024, was as follows : 

Governmental Activities. Beginning 
Balance Increases 

Capital assets, not being depreciated : 
Land $ 899,533 $ 
Construct ion in progress 119,559 559,248 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,019,092 559,248 

Capital assets, being depreciatecl : 
Buildings 7, 159,972 
In fras trueture 27,168,975 916,044 
Equ ipment 939,187 205,234 
Vehicles 1,381,196 274, 189 

Total capital assets being depreciated 36,649,330 1,395,467 
Less: Accumulated depreciation f-or: 

Buildings 2,138,895 205,250 
Infrastru cture 11 ,6 13,200 822,683 
Equipment 748,121 38,038 
Vehicles 1,066,600 110,864 

Tota l accurnulaied de preciat ion 15,566,816 1, 176,835 
Capital assets being deprecia ted , net 21,082,514 218,632 

Governmental activi t ies capita l <1ssets, net $ 22, 101,606 $ 777,880 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government as follows: 

Governmental Activities : 
General government $ 32,492 
Law and public safety 93,231 
Street 8 I 9,945 
Animal control 140 
Cemetery 5,024 
Parks 226,003 

$ I, 176,835 

36 

Ending 
Decreases Balance 

$ $ 899,533 
678,807 

1,578,340 

7, 159,972 
28,085,019 

I, 144,42 l 
1,655,385 

38,044,797 

2,344,145 
12,435,883 

786, 159 
1, 177,464 

16,743,65 1 
21,301 , 146 

$ $ 22,879,486 
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NOTED - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (Continued) 

Business-type Activities : 

Beginni ng 

Balance Increases 

Capital assets, 110t being depreciated: 

Land $ 617,083 $ 
Construction in Progress 10,019,231 2,0 18,540 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 10,636,3 14 2,0 18,540 

Capital assets, being depreciated : 

Plant 18,991,467 984,410 

Equ ipment 874,918 39,953 

Vehic les 940,797 27,190 

Tot-a! capital assets, be ing depreciated 20,807, I 82 1,051,553 

Less Accumulated depreciation for: 

Plant 11,041,851 43 1,956 

Equiprnenl 408,,5 l 4 41 ,5 81 

Vehicles 527,684 70,691 

Total dccw:nulated depreciation 11,978,049 544,228 
Totai capital assets be ing deprec iated, net $ 8,829, 133 

Business--1:ype activities capita l assets, net $ 19,465,447 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government as fo llows: 

Business-type Activities: 

Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 

$ 267,744 
276,484 

$ 544,228 

Endi ng 

Decreases Ba lance 

$ $ 617,083 

858,097 11, 179,674 

858,097 11,796,757 

19,975,877 

914,87 1 

967,987 

2 1,858,735 

11,473,807 

450,095 

598,375 

12,522,277 
$ 9,336,458 

$ 2 1,133,2 15 
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Business-type activities 

The following is a summary of Proprietary Fund debt of the City fo r the year ended December 31, 
2024 : 

Beginning Ending 
Bonds payable: Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Revenue bonds $ 9,997,000 $ $ 791 ,961 $ 9,205,039 
Bond premium 703,451 26,052 677,399 

Compensaled absences 82,118 93,981 91,383 84,716 

Business-type activities 

long-term liabilities $ 10,782,569 $ 93,981 $ 909,396 $ 9,967,154 

Due and payable within one year $ 293 ,563 
Due and payable in more than one year: 

Bond premium 65 1,347 
Compensated absences 76,244 
Revenue bonds 8,946,000 

$ 9,967,154 

The Proprietary Fund- Water Fund long-term debt as of December 3 I, 2024, fol lows: 

On January 9, 2020, the City issued $ 6, 164,000 in Combined 

Waterworks and Sewerage System Refunding and Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, State of Missouri-Direct Loan Program, for the 

purpose of extending and improving the City's combined waterworks 
and sewerage system. $ 831,582 of the proceeds was used to redeem 
the 2003B Refunded issue. Interest rate is .90% with a .50% administrative 
fee with those payments due July and January I st of each year and 
principal due annually on January 1st of each year. Final payment is 
due January 1, 2040. 
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$ 4,540,039 

Due Wit! 
One Ye: 
$ 259,0~ 

26,0.'.: 

8,4~ 

$ 293 ,5( 
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

On February I , 2020, the City issued $ 4,665,000 in Combined 
Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds for the 

purpose of extending and improving the City's System (the "Project'). 
Interest rate is 5.00% with payments due February 1 and August !st 

each year and Principal due on February I st annually. Final payment 

is February I, 20.50. 

Total Revenu e Bonds 

4,665,000 

$ 9,205,039 

The annual requirements to amortize Water Fund bonded debt as of December 31, 2024, follows : 

Year End ing Water and Sewer Funds 

December J I, Principal Interest Totals 
2025 $ 259,039 $ 278,026 $ 537,065 
2026 264,000 275,415 539,4 15 
2027 269,000 272,756 541 ,756 
2028 273 ,000 270,056 543 ,056 
2029 278,000 267,3 15 545,315 

2030-2034 1,529,000 1,293,855 2,822,855 
2035--2039 1,663,000 1,2 14,285 2,877,285 
2040-2044 1,809,000 1,017,064 2,826,064 
2045-2049 2,306,000 506,5 00 2,8 12,500 

2050 555,000 27,000 582,000 

$ 9,205,039 $ 5,422,272 $ 14,627,311 
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Governmental Activities Debt 

The fo llowing is a sum mary of debt transactions of the City fo r the year ended December 31, 2024: 

Beginning Ending 
Governmenta l Activities: Balance Addit ions Reductions Balance 

2019 Tahoes $ 2,616 $ $ 2,616 $ 
2023 Ford Trucks 83,659 17,544 66,1 15 
2023 Ford F-1 50's 104,5 18 18,315 86,203 

Total Leases 86,275 104,5 18 38,475 152,318 
20 18 Certificate of Participation 2,585,000 100,000 2,485,000 
20 18 G.O. Bond 8,795,000 430,000 8,365,000 
Unamortized bond premium 769,630 51,309 718,321 

Compensated absences 179, 123 181 ,485 147,411 213, 197 
Governmental activities 

long-term I iabi I itics $ 12,415,028 $ 286,003 $ 767, l 95 $ 11 ,933,836 

Due and payable within one year $ 660 ,721 
Due and payable in more than one year: 

Lease payab le 11 4,226 
Certificate of Participation 2,385,000 
General Ob ligation Bond 7,9 15,000 
Unamo11ized bond premium 667,012 
Com pensated absences 191,877 

$ 11,933,836 

4 0 

Amoun1 
Due With 

One Yea 

18,55 
19,53 
38,09 

100,00 
450,00 

51,30 

21 ,32 

$ 660,72 
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

The Govern mental-type Activities long-term debt as of December 31 , 2024, fo ll ows: 

On May I, 2018 the City issued $ 3,985,000 in Cert ificates of 

Participation for the purpose of building an outdoor aqua park complex. 

The interest rate runs from 4.00% to 3.875% with principa l payments 

due every March l and interest due semi-annual ly on September I 

and March t of each year. Final payment is March 1, 2043. 

On April 5, 2018 the City issued$ I 0,000,000 General Ob ligation 

Street Improvement Bonds for the purpose of infrastructure 

improvements near mi le marker I 03 on J-44. Interest rate on the 

bonds range from 3.00<!fo to 5 .. 00% with princ ipa l payments due 

March 1 and interest due semi-annually on September l and March l 

of each year. Fina l payment is March I, 3038 . 

$ 2,485 ,000 

8,365,000 

$ I 0,850,000 

The an nuai requirements to amortize Governmental-Type Activities bonded debt as of Decernber 
31, 2024, follows : 

Year Ending 

December 31, Princieal Interest Totals 

2025 $ 550,000 $ 460,294 $ 1,010,294 

2026 570,000 438,394 1,008,394 
2027 585,000 416,294 1,001,294 
2028 605,000 393,494 998,494 
2029 635 ,000 369,606 1,004,606 

203 0-2034 3,575,000 1,423,899 4,998,899 

2035-2039 3,655,000 502,344 4, 157,344 

2040-2043 675,000 53,572 728,572 

$ 10,850,000 $ 4,057,897 $ 14,907,897 
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On April 6, 2023 the City entered into a five year lease agreement 
as a lessee for two 2023 Ford Trucks ($47,392 per truck). Payments 
are $1825.16 per month for 60 months at an interest rate of 5.55% 

On January 9, 2024 the City entered into a five year lease agreement 
as a lessee for two 2023 Ford F- 150 ($ 52,2592 per truck) . Payments 

$ 66,115 

are $2,039.83 per month for 60 months at an interest rate of 6.30% 86,203 

$ 152,318 

Governmental Activities Debt 

Following is a summary of debt maturities and interest requirements on the above: . 

Year Ending 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 

Total minimum paym ents 
Less: amount representing interest 

Present value of minimum payments 

42 

$ 

$ 

46,380 
46,3 80 
46,380 
3 1,729 

170,869 
(18,551) 

152,318 
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Assets shown above under capital leases are included in Note D. 

Four 2023 Ford Trucks $ 
Less : Accumulated Depreciat ion 

Net $ 

NOTE F -- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

236, l 05 

(54,796) 

181 ,309 

The City of Marshfield participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement 
System (LAGERS), LAG ERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee 
retirement plan for units of local government which is legally separate and fiscally independent of 
the State of Missouri . The retirement system covers all full-time City employees. 

Plan descripti9_11 

The City of l'v1arshJield ' s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and 
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City of Marshfield pmticipates in the 
Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS). LAGERS is an agent 
multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan established in 1967 and admin istered in 
accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755. As such, it is LAGERS responsibilit}' to administer the law 
in accordance with the expressed intent of the General Assembly. The plan is qualified under the 
Internal Revenue Code Section 401 (a) and is tax exempt. The responsibility for the operations and 
administration of LAGERS is vested in the LAGERS Board of Trustees consisting of seven 
persons. LAGERS issues a publicly available financial repo1t that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by accessing the LAGERS 
website at www.molagers .org. 

Benefits provided. 

LAGERS provides retirem ent, death and disability benefits . Benefit provisions are adopted by the 
governing body of the employer, within the options available in the state statutes governing 
LAGERS. All benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Employees who retire on or after age 
60 (55 for police and fire) with 5 or more years of service are entitled to an allowance for life based 
upon the benefit program information provided below. Employees may retire with an early 
retirement benefit with a minimum of 5 years of credited service and after attaining age 55 (50 for 
police and fire) and receive a reduced allowance. 
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NOTE F - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Benefit Multiplier: 
Final Average Salary: 
Member Contributions: 

2024 Valuation 
2.00% 

5 years 
4.00% 

Benefit terms provide for annual post retirement adjustments to each member 's retirement 
allowance subsequent to the member 's retirement date. The annual adjustment is based on the 
increase in the Consumer Price Index and is limited to 4% per year. 

Employees covered by benefit terms. 

On June 30, 2024, the following employees were covered by the benefits terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

Total 

Contributions 

26 
17 

39 

82 

The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate , as 
established by LAGERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to 
finance an unfunded accrued liability. Full-time employees of the employer contribute 4.0% of 
their gross pay to the pension plan. Employers' contribution rates are I 4.8 % General and 21.6% 
Police of annual covered payroll. 

Net Pension Liability 

The employer' s net pension liability was measured as June 30, 2024, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of february 
28, 2024. 

The Pension Liability is paid in the ratio of pension contributions by each activity/fund/department. 

Actuarial assumptions 

The total pension liability in the February 28, 2024, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE F - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Inflation 
Salary increase 
Investment rate of return 

2. 75% wage inflation: 2.25% price inflation 
2.75% to 6. 75% including wage inflation 
7.00% net of investment 

Mortality rates were based on the healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement 11101tality, 
were the RP-20 I 4 Healthy Annuitant mortality table for males and females . The disabled retiree 
mortality tables, for post-retirement mmtality, were the RP-20 I 4 disabled mortality tab It~ for males 
and females. The pre--retirement mo1tality tables used were the RP-2014 employees ' mortality table 
for males and females . 

Both the post-retirement and pre-retirement tables were adjusted for mortality improvement back to 
the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for males was then established to be 2024. 
Mrntality rates for a paiticular calendar year are determined by applying the MP-2015 11101tality 
improvement scale. 

The actuarial assumptions were based on the 5-year experience study for the period March I, 20 l 0., 
through February 28, 20 l 5, 

The long--tern; expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model 
method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of investment: expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class . These ranges are 
combined to produce the long--term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation . The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table : 

Asset Class 
Equity 
Fixed 1 ncome 
Real Assets 

Discount rate 

Target 
Allocation 

39.00% 
28.00% 
33 .00% 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

4.16% 
0.89% 
2.09% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.00%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made 
at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based 
on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay 
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long­
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payment to determine the total pension liability. 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE F - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 

Liability Net Position Liability 
(a) (b) (a)-(b) 

Balances at 7/1/2023 Liability (Asset) $ 8,647,258 $ (8,226,272) $ 420,986 
Changes for the year: 

Service Cost 221 ,494 221 ,494 
Interest 599,31 5 599,315 
Difference between expected and actual experience 35,334 . 35,334 
Changes in asumptions 
Contribution - employe r (355,470) (355,470) 
Contribution - employee (83 ,393) (83,393) 
Net investment income (412,949) (412,949) 
Benefit payments, inc luding refunds (395,675) 395,675 
Administrative expense 10,167 10,167 
Other changes 257,757 257,757 

Net c hanges 460,468 ( 188,21 32 272,255 
Balances at 6 /30/2024 Liability (Asset) $ 9,107,726 • $ (8,414,485) $ 693,241 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. 

The following presents the Net Pension Liability of the employer, calcufated using the discount rate 
of 7.00 %, as well as what the employer's Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that 
is 1 percentage point lower 6.00% or one percentage point higher 8.00 % than the current rate. 

$ 

1 % Decrease 
6.00% 

2,095,893 

Current Single Discount 
Rate Assumption 

7.00% 
$ 693,241 

tL 6 

$ 

1 % Incr·ease 
8.00% 

(451,795) 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

NOTE F - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the employer recognized pension expense of$ 164,772. The 
employer reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Differences in experience 
Differences in assumptions 
Excess(deficit) in investment returns 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date* 

Total 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 
$ 351 ,203 $ (74,259) 

8,778 (3 I ,205) 
267,372 
188,779 

$ 816, l 32 $ (105,464) 

*The amount repo1ted as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease in the Net Pension Liability for the year 
ending December 31, 202.5 . 

Amounts rep01ted as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 

Thereafter 
Total 

Payable to the Pension Plan 

$10,534 
266,697 
143,376 
57,928 
21,548 
21,806 

$i2_L,&&2 

On December 31 , 2024, the City of Marshfield reported a payable of$ 0.00 for the outstanding 
amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended December 31, 2024. 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31. 2024 

NOTE G - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
e1Tors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters . The City maintains commercial insurance 
coverage for property damage and various Missouri Official's bonds. Management believes coverage is 
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. 

On December 31, 2024, the City maintained commercial insurance coverage for building and contents and 
employee theft. In the past three years, the City had no losses that exceeded commercial insurance coverage. 

NOTE H - GRANTS 

Intergovernmental awards received by the City are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies . If 
grant revenues are received for expenditures, which are subsequently disallowed, the City may be required to 
repay the revenues to the funding agencies. No disallowed costs have resulted from this audit and 
management believes that futther examination will not result in any disallowed costs. 

NOTE I - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

lnterfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2024, consisted of the following with the 
purpose of the transfer stated after each category: 

Transfers In Transfer Out 

Transporation Sales Tax Fund $ $ 390,000 

Debt Service Fund 390,000 

To fond the cost 0f bond payment $ 390,000 $ 390,000 

Water Fund $ $ 54,508 

Sewer Fund 40,463 

General Fund 94,971 

Fee in Lieu of tax to the General Fund $ 94,971 $ 94,971 

Water Fund $ 42,463 $ 
Sewer Fund 1,299,740 42,463 
ARPA 1,299,740 
To redistribute cost on construction projects $1 ,342,203 $ 1,342,203 
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CITY OF MARSH:FIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

NOTE J - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

Construction in progress is authorized by actions of the City Council (governing body). A summary 
of construction in progress as of December 31 , 2024, is as follows: 

Estimated Construction Remaining Cost 
Project Cost of Project in Progress to Com~lete 

Water Fund 
Water expansion 1,630,000 1,444,523 185,477 
2020 Water Improvement 4,662,774 4,542,452 120,322 
City Hall * 9,044 
915 Marshall Remodel 69,875 52,197 17,678 

Sewer Fund 
Sewer Improvements 4,221,000 5,022,079 (801,079) 
!&I Study * 48, 103 
915 Marshall Remodel 77,356 52,232 25,124 
City Hall * 9,044 

Total Business-type Activities $ 10,661,005 $ 11,179,674 $ (452,478) 

Governmental Activities: 
Recreation Center * 16,117 
915 Marshall Remodel 666,101 448,500 217,601 
Elm & Julian St 679,790 73,597 606,193 
Patriot Park * 14,630 
Police Station 145,000 37,151 107,849 
City Hall * 88,812 

Total Governmental Activities $ 145,000 $ 678,807 $ 107,849 

*Cost represents the planning stage and bids nor cost estimates have been made to date. 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

NOTE K - LEASES RECEIVABLE 

GENERAL FUND 

In the General Fund, the City, as a lessor, is involved in a lease agreement for tower usage, the 
terms of which expire during 2051. Lease and interest revenue recognized under the lease 
agreements during the year ended December 31, 2024, was $18,703 and $10,683 , respectively. 
Below is a schedule of future payments that are included 111 the measurement of the lease 
receivable: 

Year Ending December 31, 
2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

2030-2034 

2035-2039 

2040-2044 

2045-2049 

2050-205 l 

WATER FUND 

P1incipal 
$ 9,340 $ 

9,924 

10,527 

11 ,151 

11 ,795 

69,406 

88,975 

111 ,864 

138,554 

63,848 
$ 525,384 $ 

Interest Total 

10,508 $ 19,848 

10,321 20,245 

10,122 20,649 

9,912 21 ,063 

9,689 21 ,484 

44,633 114,039 

36,934 125,909 

27,150 139,014 

14,928 153,482 

1,928 65,776 

176,125 $ 701,509 

In the Water Fund, the City, as a lessor, is involved in lease agreements for tower usage, the terms 
of which expire in 203 I and 2032. Lease and interest revenue recognized under the lease 
agreements during the year ended December 31, 2024, was $24,085 and $4,238, respectively. 
Below is a schedule of future payments that are included in the measurement of the lease 
receivable: 

Year Ending December 31, P1incipal 
2025 $ 24,410 

2026 26,158 

2027 27,099 

2028 28,166 

2029 29,338 

2030-2032 55,149 
$ 190,320 

50 

Interest 
$ 3,806 

3,318 

2,795 

2,253 

1,690 

1,699 
$ 15,561 

Total 
$ 28,216 

29,476 

29,894 

30,419 

31,028 

56,848 

$ 205,881 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 l, 2024 

NOTE L- FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The accounting principles governing the reported amounts, presentation and related disclosures are subject 
to change from time to time based on new pronouncements and/or rules issued by various governing 
bodies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments . 

The City adopted the following statements during the year ended December 31 , 2024. 

GASB Statement No . 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, Issued December 2023. This statement is to 
provide users of governmental financial statements with essential information about risks related 
to a government ' s vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. The effective date 
of this requirement is for fiscal years ending after June 15 , 2024. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

The City did not have any changes to report for the year ending December 31, 2024, upon 
adopting GASB 102. 

GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements, Issued April 2024. The 
objective of this Statement is to improve key components of the financial reporting model to 
enhance its effectiveness in providing information that is essential for decision making and 
assessing a government's accountability. This statement also addresses ce1iain application issues . 
The effective date of this requirement is for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2025 . Earlier 
application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, Issued September 2024. The 
objective of this Statement is to provide users of government financial with essential information 
about ce1iain types of capital assets. The effective date of this requirement is for fiscal years 
ending after June 15, 2025. Earlier application is encouraged. 

NOTE M - SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In 2023 the State of Missouri appropriated $5 million to the City of Marshfield for the purpose of 
extending sewer into the new corridor that sits along I-44 at mile marker 103 and modifications to 
the Wastewater Treatment Facility. The project is estimated to cost more than $7 million . In 
February of 2025 , $1.5 million was received for the bore under I-44 that was completed in late 
2024 and engineering costs. 

NOTE N-RESTATED BEGINNING BALANCE 

Net Position for Business-Type Activities was restated$ 147,143 for unbilled utility receivables 
previously omitted in the prior year financial statements. 
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CITY OF lWARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON INFORMATION 
DECEMBER 3 I, 2024 

Explanation of Budgetary Process 

The City Council follows the procedures outlined below 111 establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the basic financial statements: 

a. City depa11ment directors prepare departmental operating budgets, and the Director of 
Finance makes revenue projections on or before September 151

• 

b. Depai1mental meetings are conducted during the month of October with the City 
Manager and the Director of Finance to allow the depai1ments to suppo11 their budgets. 

c. Preliminary budget summaries of revenues and expenditures/expenses are prepared for 
review by the City Manager. 

d. Final budget decisions are made by the City Manager by mid-November. 
e. A proposed budget is submitted to the City Council by the end of November. 
f. Prior to January I st, the budget is legally enacted . Projected expenditures cannot exceed 

estimated revenues plus fond balances at the beginning of the year. 
g. Budgetary control is exercised by the City Council at the depa11ment and fund levels. 

This is the legal level of control. All unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end . 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

The budgeted amounts included in the basic financial statements are as originally adopted or 
amended by the City Counc il , pursuant to State Statutes. The City Council adopts annual budgets 
for the General Fund, Transportation Sales Tax Fund, Park Fund, Cemetery Fund and Debt 
Service Fund . 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, actual expenditures were within budget. 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE or REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN HJND 

BALANCE--BUDGE"f AND ACTUAL-
FOR Tl-IE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2024 

Trnnsportation Sales Tax fund 
Bud~et Variance With 

REVENUES Ori!linal Final Actual final l3udiiet 
Sales tax s 895,760 s 895,760 s 977,781 s 82,021 
Grants 421,066 421,066 47, 102 (373,964) 
Interest and dividends 2•t.OOO 24 ,000 107,323 83,323 
Miscellaneous i 10,000 110,000 68,595 (41,405) 

Total Revenues 1,450,826 1,450,826 1,200,801 (250,025) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expense-

Streets 379,300 379,300 129, 101 250,199 
Capital Outlay 1,213,000 1,2 13,000 422,228 790,772 

Total Expenditures 1,592,300 1,592,300 551,329 1,040,971 

(DEFlClT) Ol' REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES ( 141 ,47,]) (141,474) 649,472 (790,946) 

OTHI:::R FINANCING SOURCE (USES) 
Reunbursernent s s 93,233 (93,233) 
Transfers (Out) (390,000) (390,000) (390,000) 

CHANGES IN l'UND BALANCE s (531,47,1) s (531,47,1) 352,705 s (88,1,179) 

fUN[J BALANCES - BEGINNING 2,512,196 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING s 2,864,901 

Park Fund 
Bud1aet Variance With 

REVENUES Original Final Actual final Bud!aet 
Property ta~es ~. 121 ,281 $ 121 ,28 1 s 124,293 s 3,0 12 
Snlcs lax 895,760 895,760 977,755 81,995 
Activit~• fees 235,580 235,580 266,985 3 1,405 
Interest and dividends 24 ,000 24,000 9'.l ,6]2 69,632 
Rent 20,800 20,800 (20,800) 
Miscellaneous 5,25 1 5,251 
Contribution 350,000 350,000 351,500 1,500 

Total Revenues 1,647,421 1,647,421 1,819,416 171,995 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expense-

Park 870,469 870,469 530,405 340,064 
Capital outlay 662,103 1,066,725 77l,34 I 294,384 
Debt service: 

Principal 100,000 100,000 100,000 
Interest and agents Ices 92 , 194 92,194 91,308 886 

Tola! Expenditures !,724,766 2, I 29,388 1.494,054 635,334 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) Ol' REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES s (77,345) s (481,967) 325,362 s 807,329 

l'UND BALANCES - BEGINNING 2,135,082 

l'UND BALANCES - ENDING s 2,460,444 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND 

llALANCE-IJUDGET AND •\CTUAI.-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 l 2024 

Transeor1ation Sales Tnx Fund 
Bud1ze1 Variance Wilh 

REVENUES Original Final Actual Final Bud1zet 
Sales \ax s 895,760 s 895,760 s 977 ,781 s 82,021 
Grants •121,066 421,066 47,102 (:;73,964) 
Interest and dividends 24,000 24,000 107,323 83,323 
Miscellaneous 110,000 110,000 68,595 (4l,<105) 

Total Revenues 1,4 50,826 1,450,826 1,200,80 I (250,025) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expense-

Streets 379,300 379,300 129, 101 250,199 
Capital Outlay 1,2 13,000 1,2 13,000 422,228 790,772 

Total Expenditures 1,592,300 1,592,300 551,329 1,040,971 

(DEFICIT) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES ( 141,47•1) (141,474) 649,<l72 (790,9•16) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE (USES) 
Reimbursement s s 93,233 (93.,233) 
Transfers (Out) (390,000) (390,000) (390,000) 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE s (531,474) s (531,<174) 352,705 s (884 ,179) 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 2,512,196 

FUND BALANCES - END ING s 2,864,90 I 

Park Fund 
Budjlet Variance With 

REVENUES Original Final Actual Final Bud1,e1 
Property laxes s 12 1,281 s 121,281 s 124,293 s 3,012 
Sales tax 895,760 895,760 977,755 81,995 
Act ivity fees 235,580 235 ,580 266,985 3 1,405 
Interest and dividends 24,000 2•1,000 93 ,632 69,632 
Rent 20,800 20,800 (20,800) 
Misc:ellaneous 5,251 5,251 
Co11lrihution 350,000 350,000 351,500 1,500 

T◊ la l Revenues 1,647.'12 I 1,647,421 1,8 19,<1 16 171,995 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expense-

Pirk 870,469 870,469 530,405 340,064 

Capital outlay 662,103 1,066,725 772,341 29•1,38•1 
Debt service: 

Principal 100,000 100,000 100,000 
lntcrcsl and agents fees 92,194 92,194 91,308 886 

Total Expenditures 1,724,766 2,129,388 1,494,054 635,334 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES s (77,345) s (481,967) 325,362 s 807,329 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 2,135,082 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING s 2,460,444 
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2024 2023 

Total Pension Liability 
Service costs s 221 ,494 s 198,340 

Interest on Total Pension Liability 599,315 556,946 

Difference between expected and actual 
experience 35,334 246,900 

Changes in Assumptions 
Benefit payments, including refunds (395,675) (420,508) 

Net change in total pension liability 460,468 581,678 

Total Pension Liability-beginning 8,647,258 B,065,580 

Total Pension Liability-ending s 9. 107,726 s 8,647,258 

Plan fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - employer s 355,470 s 3 i 7,477 

Contributions - employee 83,393 73,733 
Net investment income 412,949 276,484 
Benefits payments, including refunds (395,675) (420,508) 
Pension Plan Administrative Expense (10,167) (11,417) 

Other (Net Transfer) (257,757) 29,981 
Net change in pl an fiduciary net position 188,2 13 265,750 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position-beginning 8,226.272 7,960,522 
Plan fiduciary Net Position-ending s 8,414,485 s 8,226,272 

Net Pension Liability s 693,241 s 420.986 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability 92.39% 95 .i3% 

Covered payro ll s 1,958,539 s 1,835,655 

Net Pension liabil ity as a percentage 
of covered payroll 35.40% 22.93% 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFOJUv!A'1iON - UNA\jDJTED 

SCHF.DUCE OF CHAl'<GES IN NET PENSION 
LIAl31UTY AND RELATED RA nos 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 

2022 2021 2020 2019 

s 186,0 17 s 177,570 s i73,790 s 170,265 

524.260 529,494 497,941 469,942 

U9,91 i (:51 ,047) 108,752 92,029 

(i 10,809) 
(359, 140)_ (367, 173) {32'/,795) (367,085) 
49 1,048 ,78.035 452,688 365,!Si 

7,574,532 7.396,497 6,943 ,809 6,578,658 
s 8,065,580 s 7.574.5:2 s 7.396,497 s 6,943 ,809 

s 280, 123 s 250.219 5 236,635 s 210,605 
65,199 61,035 62,126 58,649 
7,276 1,683,953 82,363 378,747 

(359,140) (367,173) (327,795) (367,085) 
{8,177) {6,679) (9,144) (7,487) 

(13,662) 49,858 2,730 56,571 
(28,38 1) i ,671 ,213 46,915 330,000 

7,988,903 6,317,690 6,270,775 5,940,775 
s 7,960.522 s 7,988.903 s 6.317,690 s 6,270,775 

s 105,058 s (4 14 ,371) s 1,078,807 s 673,034 

98.70% 105.47% 85.41% 90.31% 

s i,626,218 s 1.506,690 s 1,465,956 s 1,411,330 

6.46% -27.50% 73 .59% 47.69% 
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2018 2017 2016 2015 

s 155,234 s 145,581 s 147,488 s 152,198 
451.756 429,522 404,521 396,287 

(20,905) 51,:23 (113,853) (139,761) 

240.266 
(3 18,998) (329,773) (335,427) (251,726) 
267,087 296,653 342,995 156,998 

6,311,571 6,0i 4,9!8 5,671,923 5,514,925 
s 6,578,658 $ 6,311,571 s 6,014,918 S 5_.671 ,923 

s 189.96 I s 168,259 s 155,315 s 174,6 17 
57,172 54,578 50,787 53,923 

656,331 563,255 5,595 I 08,433 
(318,998) (329,773) (335,427) (251,726) 

{5,207) {5,057) (4,794) {5,406) 
(22,528) 25,247 (166,710) (163 ,589) 
556,731 476,509 (295,234) (83,748) 

5,384,044 4,907,535 5,202,769 5,286.517 
s 5,940,775 s 5,384,044 ___L____<l,907,53J S 5,202,769 

s 637,883 _s ___ 921.521 _s _I , 107,383 s 469,154 

90.30% 85.30% 81.59% 91.73% 

s 1,413,405 s 1,262,361 s 1,247,4 I 8 S 1,323,582 

45.13% 73.48% 88.77% 35.45% 



Fiscal Year 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 
2019 

2020 
2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

$ 

Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution 

176,055 

164,694 

2 11 ,804 

236,374 
245,035 

262,579 

271,697 

310,801 

340,983 

368,646 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA Tl ON-UNA LIDITED 

SCHEDULE OF PENS ION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 

Covered 

Contribution in Contribution Employee Contribution as 

Re lation Deficiency Payroll Percentage 

$ 163 , 112 $ 12,943 $ 1,300,543 12.54% 

157,613 7,081 1,323,145 11.91% 

176,876 34.928 1,384.013 12.78% 

199,507 36,867 1,444,246 13.81% 

223,153 21 ,882 1,508,749 14.79% 

246,403 16, 176 1,561.873 15 .78% 

258,963 12,734 1.526, 130 16.97% 

304,915 5,886 1,755 ,217 17.37% 

337,902 3,080 1,976,59:i 17. 10% 

368,646 2,161 ,984 17.05% 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE or CONTRIBUTIONS 

Valuation Date: 

Notes: 

February 29, 2024 

The roll -forward oftotai pension liability from February 28 . 2024 to 

June 30, 2024 reflects expected service cost and interest reduced 

by actual benefit payments. 

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates : 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Amortization Method 

Remaining Amortization Period 

Asset Valuation Method 

Inflation 

Sa lary increases 

Investment Rate of Return 

Retirement Age 

Mortality 

Other information: 

Entry Age Normal and Modified Terminal Funding 
A level percentage of payroll amortization method is used to 

amorllze lhe UAAL over a closed period of years. If the UAAL 

(excludi ng the UAAL associated with benefit changes) is negative, 
then thi s amount is amortized over the greater of (i) the remaining 

initial amortization period or (ii) 15 years. 

Multiple bases from 7 to 15 years 

5-Year smoothed market: 20% corridor 

2.75% wage inflation; 2.25% price inflation 

2.75% to 6.75% including wage inflation 

7 .00%, net of investment 

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of 

eligibility condition. 

The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, 

used in evaluating allowances to be paid were 115% of the PubG-

20 IO Retiree Mortality Table for males and females. The disabled 

retiree mortality tables , for post-retirement mortality, used in 

evaluating allowances to be paid were I 15% of the PubNS-201 0 

Disabled Retiree Mortality Table for males and females . The pre­

retirement mortality tables used were 75% of the PubG-2010 
Employee Mortality Table for males and females of General groups 

and 75% of the PubS-20 IO Employee Mortality Table for males and 

females of Police, Fire and Public Safety groups. 

Mortality rates for a particular calendar year are determined by 

app lying the MP-2020 mortality improvement scale to the above 

described tables. 

None 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF RF.VENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCES ·· BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , ?024 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 

Sale of plots and openings 

Interest and dividends 

Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Cemetery 

Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES 

$ 

Budget 

Original 

143,361 
39,500 
12,000 

1,000 
195,861 

176,959 
140,196 
317,155 

$ 

Cemetery Fund 

Final 

143,361 
39,500 
12,000 

1,000 
195,861 

182,459 
155,454 
337,913 

$ 

Actual 

147,846 
51,350 
26,166 

1,604 
226,966 

164,007 
70,67) 

234,678 

Variance With 

Final Budget 
$ 4,485 

11,8.50 
14,166 

604 
31,105 

18,452 
84,783 

I 03,235 

OVEREXPENDITURES $ (121,294) $ (142,052) (7,712) $ 134,340 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 

Interest and dividends 

Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service: 

Principal 

Interest and fees 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfer in 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

Budget 

Original 

$ 424,941 $ 

3,000 

427,941 

430,000 
391,668 
821 ,668 

(393,727) 

$ 390,000 $ 

635,436 

$ 627,724 

Debt Service Fund 

Variance With 

Final Actual Final Budget 

424,941 $ 436,588 $ 11,647 
3,000 10,420 7,420 

20 20 
427,941 447,028 19,087 

430,000 430,000 
391 ,668 391,708 (40) 
821 ,668 821 ,708 (40) 

(393,727) (374,680) 19,047 

390,000 390,000 $ 

463,082 

$ 478,402 
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SECTION III- STATISTICAL SECTION 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Statistical Section Overview 

This part of the City's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a context 
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required 
supplementary information says about the City ' s overall financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 

Pages 

66 - 71 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial 
performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 72 - 76 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local revenue 
sources. 

Debt Capacity 77 - 81 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current 
levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 82 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the City's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 83 - 85 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it 
performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the audited annual 
financial reports for the relevant year. 
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CITY OF MARS HFIELD, MISSOURI 

Net Position By Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Yea rs 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
Governmenta l activities 

Net investment in capital assets $ 11 ,158,847 $ 9,865,70 I $ 10,706,665 $ 10,423 ,955 $ 8,486,933 $ 8,021,604 $ 6,443,366 $ 8,354,813 $ 7,319,368 $ 6,929,532 
Restricted 6,431 ,471 5,819,894 4,989,685 5,275,745 6,921 ,862 791,255 2,454,175 
Unrestricted 5,266,937 4,381,325 3, I 03 ,765 2,105,656 145,843 5,361,448 4,191,396 3,738,094 2,639,901 2,274,559 

Total governmental 
activities net position L__l2_,_ 8 5 7,2 5 5 $ 20,066 ,920 $ 18,800,115 $ 17,805,356 $ 15,554,638 $ 14,174,307 $ 13,088,937 $ 12,092 ,907 $ 9,959,269 $ __ 9,204_,091 

Business-type activities 
Net investment in capital assets 11,250,777 8,764,996 7,718,383 8,171 ,494 6,892,140 10,506,686 9,993 ,060 9,226,957 8,846,728 8,259,976 
Restricted 746,034 833,742 613,720 3,755,820 5,849,251 948,631 1,344,973 1,012,282 857,852 472,327 
Unrestricted 5,686,488 6,046,061 6,156,224 2,110,059 1,02 1,093 2,212,324 1,639,583 1,862,678 1,477,906 1,260,450 

Total business-type 
activities net position $ 17,683,299 $ 15,644,799 $ 14,488,327 $ 14,037,373 $ 13,762,484 $ 13,667,641 $ 12,977,616 $ l? ,101 ,917 $ 11 ,182,486 $ 9,991_753 

Primary government 
Net investment in capital assets 22,409 ,624 18,630,697 18,425 ,048 18,595,449 15,379,073 18,528,290 16,436,426 17,581,770 16,166,096 15,189,508 
Restricted 7,177,505 6,653,636 5,603,405 9,031 ,565 12,771 ,113 1,739,886 3,799,148 1,012,282 857,852 472,327 
Unrestricted 10,953,425 10,427,386 9,259,989 4,215,715 1,166,936 7,573,772 5,830,979 5,600,772 4,117,807 ___1,535,009 

Total primary government 
net position $ 40,540,554 $ 35,711 ,719_ $ 33,288,442 $ _ 31 ,842,729 _$ 29,317,122 $ 27,841 ,948 _ $ 26,066,553 $ 24,194,824 $ _1_1 ,141,755 $ I 9,196,844 

Source: Basic f inancial Statements 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Changes in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 ~17 2016 2015 
Expenses 
Governmental Activities 

General government $ 576,526 $ 464,843 $ 450,646 $ 290,763 s 304,171 $ 396,831 $ 358,317 $ 292,370 $ 320,771 $ 287,391 
Law and public safety 1,522,767 1,385,546 1,274,054 902 ,597 991 ,020 1,000,270 926,558 802,788 795,362 854 ,715 
Street 1,394,454 1,414,650 969,185 804,609 764,596 748,416 841 ,089 774,105 784,777 760,357 
Fire 306,749 300,024 290,488 263 ,854 278,575 290,572 
Municipal court 137,994 128,093 11 8,059 73 ,062 74,207 72,065 50,393 60,223 48,442 49,310 
Building inspection 135,300 128,591 98,431 88,651 56,414 69,233 59,740 65 ,455 50,519 
Economic Development 48,000 109,397 60,000 1,239 52,848 
Animal control 40,619 39, 174 38, 174 27 ,684 24,927 33,288 31 ,930 29,892 30,677 27,611 
Cemetery 169,031 166,922 143,385 117,098 108,920 126,041 105,400 98,929 144,423 111 ,315 
Park 756,408 981 ,832 931 ,917 785 ,473 719,752 547, 131 441 ,200 269,325 275,882 230,304 
Interest on long-tenn debt 493,388 466,696 486, 149 503,194 521 ,237 549,969 427 ,505 17,729 49,278 125,334 

Total Governmental Activities 5,226,487 _5,176,347 4,459,569 3,712,308 3,964,230 3,830,449 3,542, 113 2,670,194 2,846,490 2,787,428 

Business-type Activities 
Water 1,712,507 1,410,567 1,308,854 1,153 ,611 1, 131 ,513 1,000,015 965,875 920,987 851 , 153 860,938 
Sewer 1,660,269 1,408,387 1,267,701 1, 189,341 1,268,952 1,022,080 991,214 948,630 983,341 909,371 

Total Business-type Activities 3,372,776 2,818,954 2,576,555 2,342,952 2,400,465 2,022,095 1,957,089 1,869,617 1,834,494 1,770,309 

Total Expenses $ 8,599,263 $ 7,995,301 $ 7,036,124 $ 6,055 ,260 $ 6,364,695 $ 5,852,544 $ 5,499,202 $ 4,539,811 $ 4,680,984 $ 4,557,737 

Program Revenues 
Governmental Activities 

General govenuncnt $ 38,650 $ 25 ,636 $ 68,722 $ 62,891 $ 60,084 $ 61,934 $ 56,892 s 33,573 $ 18,838 $ 5,624 
Law and public safety 42,165 69,518 88,6 18 18,572 
Street 
Fire 
Municipal court 50,506 100,045 136,206 115,793 78,504 50,923 47 ,986 
Transit 
Building inspection 51,452 65,970 30,820 42,512 22 ,666 35,819 25,872 28,712 23,478 
Animal control 2, 102 1,604 
Cemetery 51 ,350 47,200 32,900 38,600 40,900 28,300 39,400 35,450 40,650 21 ,000 
Park 266,985 255,657 269, 143 220,738 91 ,410 158,025 37,913 35,463 32,920 2,823 
Operating grants and contributions 12,000 9,000 28,325 2,238 3,381 20,782 13,776 
Capital grants and contributions 1,698,342 13,906 264,679 1,669 469, 104 269,432 48,205 

Total Governmental Activities 2,148,944 477 ,887 47 1,383 412 ,555 627,955 409,369 292,969 677,966 46?,?57 183,068 

Business-type Activities 
Charges for services 

Water 1,712,507 1,888,745 1,469,191 1,421 ,920 1,545,514 1,738, 171 1,438,541 1,387,632 863,088 995 ,737 
Sewer 1,660,269 2,043,268 1,550,747 1,230,390 938 ,313 908,084 1,265,535 1,224 ,176 1,112,637 1,065 ,899 
Operating grants and contributions 50,300 2,597 
Capital grants and contributions 4,800 11,100 

Total Business-type Activities 3,377,576 3,932,013 3,019,938 2,652,310 2,483 ,827 2,646,255 2,704,076 2,611 ,808 1,975,725 _ 2,061 ,636 

Total Program Revenues $ 5,526,520_ $ 4,409,900_ $ 3,491,321 $ 3,064,865 $ 3,111 ,782 $ 3,055 ,624 $ 2,997,045 _ $ 3,289,774 $ 2,437,982 $~ 704 

Net (Expense)/Revenue 
Govenunental Activities $ (3 ,077,543) $ (4,698,460) $ (3 ,988, 186) $ (3 ,299,753) s (3,336,275) $ (3,421,080) $ (3 ,249,144) $ (I , 992,228) $ (2,384,233) s (2,604,360) 
Business-type Activities 362,553 1,124, 159 493 ,683 309,358 85 ,959 624, 160 746,987 742,191 141,231 291 ,327 

Total Net Expense $ (2,714,990) $ (3,574,30 I) $ (3,494,503) $ (2,990,395) $ (3 ,250,316) $ (2 ,796,920) $ (2,502,157) $ (1,250,037) $ (2,243,002) $ (2,3 13,033) 
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CITY OF MARSHF IELD, MISSO URI 

Changes in Net Position 

(continued) 

Last Ten Fisca l Years 

General Revenues 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 ~017 2016 2015 
Governmental Activities 

Property taxes levied for cemetery 147,099 144,699 142,819 140,856 124,822 I 19,532 118,491 122,543 108,878 113,366 
Property taxes levied for debt service 434,476 431 ,131 421 ,999 403 ,065 356,922 340,082 336,560 346,386 297,577 310,563 
Property taxes levied for parks 123,661 122,787 119,869 119,772 I 08,356 101 ,812 101 ,246 104,368 92,157 96,275 
Franchise taxes 351,212 360,480 334,603 318,086 328,224 339,596 368,645 377, 160 364,332 418 ,209 
Sales taxes 5,019,691 4,234,825 3,9 10,576 3,656,17 1 3,347,370 3,051 ,718 2,902,905 2,770,955 2,762,438 2,520,610 
Lodging taxes 26,429 14,152 
Missouri motor fuel taxes 408,366 381 ,000 327,322 289,559 259,972 270,841 267,570 267 ,770 264,748 259,949 
Other taxes 
Interest on investments 494,088 165,612 35,712 29,737 81 ,300 220,971 167,524 28,369 I 5,454 14,876 
Miscellaneous 94,054 28,881 12,772 33,567 12,134 48,800 33,900 15,771 27,398 42,527 

Transfers (1 ,204,769) 95 ,317 95,823 94,786 97,506 13,098 (51 ,667) (57,081) (820,000) (140,000) 
(Loss) on sale of assets 533 19,600 464 ,872 149,625 

Total general revenues, transfers, 
and other special items 5,867,878 5,965 ,265 5,421 ,095 5,550,471 4,716,606 4,506,450 4,245 ,174 4, 125 ,866 3, 139,4!_1_ 3,~50,527 

Business-type Activities 
Sales tax 2,450 177,860 10,491 
Interest on investments 324,035 127,630 37,294 60,31 7 106,390 78,963 77 ,045 117,709 25,845 165,663 
Miscellaneous 15,800 24,797 14,924 

Transfers 1,204 ,769 (95,317) (95 ,823) (94,786) (97,506) (13,098) 51 ,667 57 ,081 820,000 140,000 
(Loss) on sale of assets 
Repayment of grant funds (75,000) 

Total Business-type activities 1,528,804 32,313 (42,729) (34,469) 8,884 65 ,865 128,712 177 ,240 1,048,502 256,078 

Total primary government $ 7,396,682 $ 5,997,578 $ 5,378,366 $ 5,516,002 $ 4,725 ,490 $ 4,572,315 $ 4,373,886 $ 4,303 , 106 $ 4, 187,913 $ 3,906,605 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental Activities $ 2,790,335 $ 1,266,805 $ 1,432,909 $ 2,250 ,718 $ 1,380,331 $ 1,085 ,370 $ 996,030 $ 2,133,638 $ 755 ,178 $ 1,046,167 
Business Activities 1,891 ,357 1,156,472 450,954 274,889 94,843 690,025 875 ,699 919,431 I, I 89,733 547,405 

Total Change in Net Position $ 4,681 ,692 $ 2,423 ,277 $ 1,883 ,863 $ 2,525,607 $ 1,475, 174 $ 1,775,395 $ 1,871,729 $ 3,053,069 $ 1,944,911 _ $~ _1,593 ,572 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

General Fund 
Nonspendable $ $ 88,508 $ 69,265 $ 67,124 $ 62,675 $ 61 ,818 $ 53,148 $ 53 ,641 $ 47,335 

Assigned 
Committed 
Unassigned 5,553 ,295 4,556,999 4,156,841 3,529,846 2,214,273 1,81 7,277 1,629,996 1,406,555 914, 120 6 I 9,576 

Total general fund $ 5,553,295 $ 4,645,50Z_____J______j,226, 106 $ 3,596,970 $ 2,276,948 $ l ,8_19,095 $ 1,683 , 144 __ $ 1,460,196 $ 961~55 $ 619,576 

All other governmental funds 
Nonspendable $ $ 27,867 $ 22,672 $ 20,380 $ 23 ,251 $ 20,788 $ 14,882 $ 17,652 $ 16,846 $ 
Restricted 6,431 ,471 5,717,929 4,967,013 4,893 ,079 5,421 ,521 5,961 ,723 15,304,223 2,701 ,257 2,048,454 1,903,758 

Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 619,576 

Total all other governmental funds $ 6,431 ,471 $ 5,745,796 __J______j,989~685 $ 4,913 ,459 $ 5,444,772 $ 5,982,511 $ 15,319,105 _$ 2, 7 I 8,909 $ 2,065,300 $ 2,523,334 

Source: Basic Financial Statements 
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Cl1Y OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 20 19 2018 2017 2016 2015 
REVENUES 

Taxes: 
Property taxes $ 708,727 $ 706,117 $ 684,319 $ 632,954 $ 559,282 $ 569,576 $ 585,082 $ 570,977 $ 526,457 $ 523,208 
Franchise taxes 351 ,212 360,480 334,603 318,086 328,224 $ 339,596 368,645 377,160 364,332 418,209 
Sales taxes 5,019,691 4,234,825 3,9 I 0,576 3,656,171 3,347,370 3,051,718 2,902,905 2,770,955 2,762,438 2,520,6 10 
Lodging tax 26,429 14,152 

Intergovernmental: 
Missouri motor fuel taxes 408,366 381,000 327,322 289,559 259,972 270,841 267,570 267,770 264,748 259,949 
Financial institutional tax 3,389 1,942 2,915 2,024 2,335 2,126 4,065 569 687 707 
Webster County road reimbursement 151 ,168 

User charges: 
Activity fees 266,985 253 ,557 269,143 220,738 91,410 145,114 34,907 30,721 29,494 
Cemetery-sale of plots & grave openings 51,350 47,200 32,900 38,600 40,900 28,300 37,400 35,250 39,050 21 ,000 

Licenses & permits 71,399 65,970 49,995 49,109 56,487 39,305 49,988 37,797 39,466 30,206 
Fines & forfeitures 42,165 69,518 88,618 50,506 100,045 136,206 115,793 78,504 50,923 66,558 
Interest 494,088 165,612 35,712 29,737 81,300 220,971 167,524 28,369 15,454 14,875 
Donations 4,000 
Grants 1,346,842 13 ,906 12,000 9,000 139,501 2,238 5,050 469,104 286,214 6 1,981 
Rent 18,703 23 ,763 18,727 44,602 46,109 58,206 49,831 26,590 13,110 3,323 
Miscellaneous 90,665 26,939 9,857 31,543 12,134 46,674 29,835 15,202 12,381 41 ,820 

Total Revenues $ 8,873,582 $ 6,350,829 $ 5,776,687 $ 5,372,629 $ 5,216,237 $ 4,910,871 $ 4,618,595 $ 4,708,968 $ 4,435,183 $ 3,976,598 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government $ 422,962 $ 473 ,81 I $ 437,354 $ 288,878 $ 280,480 $ 371 ,506 $ 321 ,971 $ 260,572 $ 274,030 $ 257,716 
Law and public safety: 

Police 1,509,135 1,365,256 1,147,432 1,047,076 960,883 958,634 906,063 772,802 765,567 838,086 
Municipal court 137,994 130,768 116,605 74,01 I 74,213 72,048 50,871 58,994 43,739 47,982 
Fire 246,828 224,332 219,879 208,656 207,691 217,055 

Street 667,742 620,357 553,888 438,263 398,337 382,853 368,847 413,203 392,621 394,677 
Building inspection 135,300 128,591 118,431 88,651 56,414 69,233 59,740 64,235 48,473 
Animal control 40,479 40,378 38,79 1 28,999 24,626 35,170 30,981 28,589 26,529 27,550 
Cemetery 164,007 167,562 144,442 124,742 105,296 118,449 94,339 87,379 123,059 98,070 
Park 530,405 778,353 733,621 638,689 514,422 508,731 296,910 228,952 230,972 196,870 
Economic Development 7,500 48,000 89,397 60,000 1,239 52,848 
Capital outlay 1,954,714 396,121 718,070 1,182,556 1,815,928 10,520,342 3,948,039 1,718,143 897,576 77,518 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

(continued) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Debt service: 
Principal 568,475 744,225 711 ,087 713,582 305,802 282, 141 18,759 12,734 8,414 2,086,525 
Interest and agent fees 493,388 513 ,078 537,458 562,587 578,163 606,544 230,573 17,729 49,278 131 ,963 
Bond issuance costs 227,582 
Total Expenditures $ 6,624,601 $ 2_,36(\_,_00Q_ 1_5,_IB,,748 $ 5,307,211 $ 5,453,§29 _ $_J4J17,164 _ _!_ 6,784,047 $ 3,868,732 $ 3,136,559 $ 4,422,485 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures 2,248,981 984,829 589,939 65,418 (237,392) (9 ,226,293) (2, 165,452) 840,236 1,298,624 (445,887) 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Loan proceeds 81 ,904 
Sale of assets 533 19,600 628,505 149,625 
Insurance claims/refunds 14,330 
Lease proceeds 94,833 29,088 
Transfers In 484,971 531,349 545,823 180,869 253,601 259,485 186,069 143 ,3 16 33,957 225,460 
Transfers (Out) (1,689,740) (436,032) (450,000) (86,083) (156,095) (246,387) (237,736) (200,397) (853,957) (365,460) 
Leases ( as lessee) 104,518 
Reimbursements 444,733 
Premium on bond issued 1,026,175 
Issuance oflease obligation 72,552 
Issuance of debt 13 ,985,000 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (655,5 I 8) 190,683 115,423 723,291 97,506 85,650 14,988,596 174,448 (805,670) (140,000) 

Net change in fund balances 1,593,463 1,175,512 705,362 788,709 (139,886) (9,140,643) 12,823,144 1,014,684 492,954 (585,887) 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures 22.74% 25.30% 27.94% 30.94% 24 .30% 24.57% 8.79% 1.42% 2.58% 51 .06% 

Source: Basic Financial Statements 
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' 

Fiscal Year Property Tax Sales Tax 

2024 708,727 5,019,691 

2023 706,117 4,234,825 

2022 684,319 3,910,576 

2021 632,954 3,656,171 

2020 559,282 3,347,370 

2019 569,576 3,051,718 

2018 585,082 2,902,905 

2017 570,977 2,770,955 

2016 526,457 2,762,438 

2015 523,208 2,520,610 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Tax Revenue by Source, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Missouri 

Franchise Motor 

Taxes (1) Fuel Tax Other Total 

351,212 408,366 3,389 6,491,385 

360,480 381,000 1,942 5,684,364 

334,603 327,322 2,915 5,259,735 

318,086 289,559 2,024 4,898,794 

328,224 259,972 2,335 4,497,183 

339,596 270,841 2,126 4,233,857 

368,645 267,570 4,065 4,128,267 

377,160 267,770 569 3,987,431 

364,332 264,748 687 3,918,662 

418,209 259,949 707 3,722,683 

Note : (1) Franchise Taxes include Electric, Telephone, Natural Gas & Cable. 

Source: Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Property Tax Rates Direct and Overlapping Governments 

Per $100 Assessed Valuation 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 
City of Marshfield 0.6044 0.5996 0.5996 0.5996 0.6120 0.6118 0.6118 0.6105 0.6202 
Marshfield Schools 3.8400 3.6909 3.6901 3.6911 3.8400 3.8400 3.8400 3.3500 3.3500 
State of Missouri 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 
Road 0.1746 0.1713 0.1713 0.1713 0.1797 0.1797 0.1797 0.1797 0.1882 
Sh/Wkshp 0.0736 0.0722 0.0722 0.0722 0.0757 0.0757 0.0757 0.0757 0.0793 
Senior 0.0464 0.0455 0.0455 0.0455 0.0477 0.0477 0.0477 0.0477 0.0500 
Health 0.1286 0.1262 0.1262 0.1262 0.1324 0.1324 0.1324 0.1324 0.1387 
Library 0.1100 0.1080 0.l080 0.1080 0.1133 0.1133 0.1133 0.1133 0.1 I 88 
Junior College 0.1871 0.1871 0.1911 0.1875 0.1996 0.1990 0.2023 0.1498 0.1500 
Fire District (1) 0.6000 0.6000 0.6000 0.6000 0.2867 

Total District Overlapping 5.7947 5.6308 5.6340 5.6314 5.5171 5.2296 5.2329 4.6891 4.7252 

Commercial Surcharge (on Commercial Real Estate only): 

Note: (1) In 2020 voters approved to allow the boundaries of the Marshfield Fire Protection District to be extended to include all property within the 
corporate city limits of the City of Marshfield. 

Source: Webster County Clerk's Office 
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0.6202 
3.3500 
0.0300 
0. 1882 
0.0793 
0.0500 
0.1387 
0.1188 
0.1494 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

December 31 
2024 
2023 
2022 
2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

Notes: 

Residential ABricultural 
$ 50,634,980 $ 272,610 

50,886,180 271,370 
49,640,050 271 ,340 
49,132,570 271 ,240 
44,077,920 143,300 
44,064,460 144,230 
43,043 ,120 107,870 
42,829,760 108,970 
39,005,160 55,230 
38,681,120 55,590 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Local Total Taxable 
Commercial Utilities State Utilities Personal assessed Value 

$ 35,056,230 $ 107,880 $1,545,179 $ 23,494,710 $ 111 ,111 ,589 
35,122,090 109,790 1,176,901 25,287,594 $ 112,853,925 
34,339,770 6 I ,280 936,635 24,359,414 $ I 09,608,489 
32,521,720 55,430 288,934 20,474,181 $ 102,744,075 
28,890,880 88,010 827,180 19,010,810 $ 93,038,100 
28,360,590 55,430 806,578 16,674,322 $ 90,105,610 
28,462,170 46,674 764,783 15,993,201 $ 88,417,818 
27,683,470 41,920 739,672 15,435,062 $ 86,838,854 
25,772,750 45,200 719,735 14,592,142 $ 80,190,217 
25,662,780 23 ,620 670,629 14,529,160 $ 79,622,899 

1. Property is reassessed annually by the Webster County Assessor. 

Estimated 
Actual Value 

454,042,858 
459,799,578 
447,106,247 
425,043,347 
383,416,708 
374,513 ,785 
366,949,369 
361,632,729 
332,501 ,078 
330,044,919 

2. Residential property is assessed at 19% of appraised value, agriculture at 12%, commercial and industry at 32%, and 
personal property at 33.3%. 

3. Tax levies are per $1,000 of assessed value. 

Source: Webster County Clerk 
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Assessed 
Value as a Total 

Percentage of Direct 
Actual Value Lev~ 

24.5% 0.6044 
24.5% 0.5996 
24.5% 0.5996 
24.2% 0.5996 
24.3% 0.6120 
24.1% 0.6118 
24.1% 0.6118 
24.0% 0.6105 
24.1% 0.6202 
24.1% 0.6202 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Direct City Sales Tax Revenue by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

0.50% 
Additional 

Direct General for 0.50% Capital 
Sales Tax Public Safety 0.50% Improvement Water 

Fiscal Year Rate 1% General (3) Transeortation and Sewer ( 1) 
2024 2.50% 2,018,145 996,153 967,915 25 
2023 2.50% 2,059,622 71,219 983,443 26 
2022 2.00% 1,933,634 928,057 58 
2021 2.00% 1,856,348 888,622 25 
2020 2.00% 1,724,656 827,112 565 
2019 2.00% 1,533,273 730,384 I 
2018 2.00% 1,438,687 682,985 203 
2017 2.00% 1,440,532 690,924 2,450 
2016 2.00% 1,385,069 665,357 1,052 
2015 2.00% 1,374,459 653,347 10,491 

(1) Capital Improvement Water and Sewer sales tax expired October 2014. 
(2) Local Parks sales tax assessed beginning April 2015. 

0.50% 
Local Parks 

(2) Total 
967,889 4,950,127 
983,417 4,097,727 
927,986 3,789,735 
888,502 3,633,497 
826,536 3,378,870 
730,389 2,994,048 
682,294 2,804,168 
688,391 2,822,297 
663,270 2,714,749 
379,937 2,418,235 

(3) An additional 1/2% General Sales tax was approved by the voters in April 2023 and became effective October 2023, to be used for 
Public Safety. 

Source: Missouri Department of Revenue 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

City Direct Rate Webster County 
Fiscal Year (I) Rate Webster County 911 State Rate Total Rate 

2024 2.500% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.808% 
2023 2.500% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.808% 
2022 2.000% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.308% 
2021 2.000% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.308% 
2020 2.000% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.308% 
2019 2.000% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.308% 
2018 2.000% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.308% 
2017 2.000% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.308% 
2016 2.000% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.308% 
2015 2.000% 1.750% 0.333% 4.225% 8.308% 

Note: (I) City of Marshfield assessed an additional 0.50% sales tax beginning October 2023. 

Source: Missouri Department of Revenue 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Governmental Activities Business-Typ_e Activities 

Financed 
Purchase 

Fiscal Year Obligations 

2024 $ 152,318 
2023 86,275 
2022 20,667 
2021 41 ,754 
2020 85,453 
2019 121 ,255 
2018 82,120 
2017 71 ,791 
2016 2,621 
2015 11 ,035 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds (1)(3) 

$ 9,083,321 
9,564,630 
9,630,939 

10,482,248 
10,923,557 
10,974,866 
10,000,000 

Certificates of 
Participation (3) 

$ 2,485,000 
2,585,000 
2,885,000 
3,175,000 
3,455,000 
3,725,000 
3,985,000 

Financed 
Purchase 

Obligations 

$ 

10,154 
28,606 
46,424 
63,630 

$ 

General 
Obligation 
Bonds (2) 

155,000 
305,000 
450,000 

1,270,000 

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
(1) General Obligation Street Improvement Bonds, Series 2006 were redeemed and paid January I, 2016. 

Revenue 
Bonds (4) 

$ 9,882,438 
10,700,451 
11 ,004,503 
11 ,308,555 
11 ,610,607 

910,000 
1,120,000 
1,325,000 
1,525,000 
1,720,000 

(2) A portion of the General Obligation Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program), Series 2003 were redeemed on December I, 2016. 
The principal amount of the redemption was $675,000.00. 

Total 
Outstanding 

Debt 

21,603,077 
22,936,356 
23,541 ,109 
25,007,557 
26,074,617 
15,731 ,121 
15,352,274 

1,730,397 
2,024,045 
3,064,665 

(3) In 2018 $3,985,000 Certificates of Participation were issued for constructing an aquatic pool and $10,000,000 General Obligation Bonds 
were issued for constructing a new I-44 interchange at mile marker 103. 

Percentage of 
Personal Income 

9.59% 
11.59% 
13.88% 
16.99% 
18.26% 
10.97% 
11.27% 

1.27% 
1.58% 
2.42% 

(4) January 15, 2020 the City issued its Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri - Direct Loan Program) 
Series 2020 DNR Bonds, not to exceed $6,164,000. Approximately $831 ,582 of the Principal of the Series 2020 DNR Bonds was used to redeem all of the City's 
outstanding Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Refunding Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program, Series 2003B. 
May 7, 2020 the City issued its Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds Series 2020B in the amount of$4,665,000. 
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Debt Per 
Capita 

$ 2,723 
$ 2,924 
$ 3,063 
$ 3,317 
$ 3,496 
$ 2,080 
$ 2,061 
$ 236 
$ 282 
$ 432 



Fiscal Year 
2024 
2023 
2022 
2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

Notes: 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds 
$ 9,083 ,321 

9,564,630 
9,630,939 

10,482,248 
10,923 ,557 
10,974,866 
10,155,000 

305,000 
450,000 

1,270,000 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fund Balance Percentage of Actual 
Debt Service Fund Net General Taxable Value of 

(2) Bonded Debt (3) Proeerty (I) 
$ 478,402 8,604,919 1.90% 

463 ,082 9,101 ,548 1.98% 
423,712 9,207,227 2.06% 
375,057 10,107,191 2.38% 
338,171 10,585,386 2.76% 
344,774 10,630,092 2.84% 
528,531 9,626,469 2.62% 
503 ,305 (198,305) -0.05% 
317,019 132,981 0.04% 
867,422 402,578 0.12% 

(1) See Assessed and Estimated Value of Taxable Properties Table 
(2) This amount only includes the debt service fund, not the transportation fund. 
(3) The City issued $10 million General Obligation Bonds April 5, 2018. 
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Net Bonded 
Debt per 
Caeita 

1,084 
1,160 
1,198 
1,340 
1,419 
1,406 
1,292 

(27) 
19 
57 



Governmental Unit 

Marshfield R-1 School District 

Ozark Technical Community College 

Webster County 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

Subtotal, direct debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

December 31, 2024 

Estimated Estimated share of 

Percentage direct and overlapping 

Debt Outstanding Applicable debt 

$ 30,545,000 40.20% $ 12,279,090 

40,098 1.08% $ 433 

8,385,000 19.12% $ 1,603,212 

38,970,098 13,882,735 

12,235,905 12,235,905 

-
$ 51,206,003.47 $ 26,118,640.06 

Source: Missouri State Auditor, Bond Registration Reports: financial information and operating data from each jurisdiction 

that is available on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's EMMA website or directly from the jurisdiction. 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, in part or in total, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This 

schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the property 

taxpayers of the City of Marshfield . This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and 

repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden by the property taxpayers should be taken into account. However, this does 

not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government. 

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using the assessed property values. The applicable percentage 

is estimated by dividing the City's assessed valuation by the applicable governmental unit's total assessed valuation. 
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Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2024 

Assessed Value $ 111,111,589 

Debt limit (20% of assessed value) 

City Debt applicable to debt limit: 

General obligation bonds 

Less amount in debt service fund 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

2024 

Assessed valuation $ 111,111,589 

Debt limit 22,222,318 

Total net debt appl icable 

to limit 8,604,919 

Legal Debt margin 13,617,399 

Total net debt applicable to 

the limit as a percentage 38.72% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

22,222,318 

9,083,321 

(478,402) 

8,604,919 

13,617,399 

2023 

112,853,925 $ 

22,570,785 

9,101,548 

13,469,237 

40.32% 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Legal Debt Margin Information 

December 31, 2024 

2022 2021 2020 

109,608,489 $ 102,744,075 $ 93,038,100 $ 

21,921,698 20,548,815 18,607,620 

9,207,227 10,107,191 10,585,386 

12,714,471 10,441,624 8,022,234 

42.00% 49.19% 56.89% 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

90,105,610 $ 88,417,818 $ 86,838,854 $ 80,190,217 $ 79,622,899 

18,021,122 17,683,564 17,367,771 16,038,043 15,924,580 

10,630,092 9,626,469 (198,305) 132,981 402,578 

7,391,030 8,057,095 17,566,076 15,905,062 15,522,002 

58.99% 54.44% -1.14% 0.83% 2.53% 

Article VI, Sections 26 (b) and ( c), Constitution of Missouri, limits the outstanding amount of the authorized general obligation debt of a city to 20 percent of the assessed valuation of taxable tangible 

property as shown by the last completed assessment for state or county purposes. 
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Operating 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Pledged-Revenue Coverage by Fund 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Water system revenue bond coverage 
Debt Service (3) 

Less: Operating Net Available 
Fiscal Year Revenues Exeenses Revenue Princieal Interest Total Coverage 

2024 $ 1,742,377 $ 1,584,451 157,926 $ 791 ,961 $128,056 920,017 0.17 
2023 1,864,251 1,251,908 612,343 278,000 158,659 436,659 1.40 
2022 1,469, 19 l 1,164,634 304,557 278,000 144,220 422,220 0.72 
2021 1,415,520 1,003,453 412,067 311,568 150,158 461 ,726 0.89 
2020 1,545,514 937,424 608,090 910,000 181,206 1,091 ,206 0.56 
2019 1,417,109 941,73 l 475,378 210,000 54,710 264,710 1.80 
2018 1,438,541 913,656 524,885 205,000 64,960 269,960 1.94 
2017 1,387,632 791 , 195 596,437 200,000 73 ,160 273 ,160 2.18 
2016 1,040,948 800,110 240,838 195,000 80,960 275,960 0.87 
2015 995,737 696,889 298,848 190,000 88,275 278,275 1.07 

Sewer system revenue bond coverage 
Debt Service (2) 

Operating Less: Operating Net Available 
Fiscal Year Revenues ( 1) Exeenses Revenue Princieal Interest Total Coverage 

2024 $ 1,964,067 $ 1,503,115 460,952 $ $157,154 $ 157,154 
2023 $ 2,042,368 $ 1,244,648 797,720 $ $163,739 $ 163 ,739 
2022 1,550,747 1,131,782 418,965 $ $135,919 $ 135,919 
2021 1,230,390 1,044,947 185,443 $ 50,427 $144,394 $ 194,821 
2020 938,313 1,097,170 (158,857) 
2019 1,229,146 1,004,059 225,087 
2018 1,265,535 991 ,214 274,321 
2017 1,226,626 948,630 277,996 
2016 1,112,637 968,551 144,086 
2015 1,076,390 896,902 179,488 475,000 12,469 487,469 

(1) Sewer system operating revenues includes the capital improvement sales tax, which expired October 1, 2014. 

(2) The taxing power of the City is not pledged to secure payment of the revenue bonds and interest. The revenue bonds' payments 
are solely derived from the revenue of the enterprise activity operated by the City. 

(3) January 15, 2020 the City issued its Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds 

2.93 
4.87 
3.08 
0.95 

0.37 

(State of Missouri - Direct Loan Program) Series 2020 DNR Bonds, not to exceed $6,164,000. Approximately $831 ,582 of the 
Principal of the Series 2020 DNR Bonds was used to redeem all of the City's outstanding Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System 
Refunding Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program, Series 2003B. May 7, 2020 the City issued its Combined Waterworks and 
Sewerage System Revenue Bonds Series 2020B in the amount of $4,665,000. 
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2024 
Function/Programs 
General Government 

Administrative Services 4 
Municipal Court (2) 0 
Building Inspections 1 
Finance 

Police Officers 15 
Police Clerk (1) 

Fire (3) 0 

Parks & Recreation 4 

Utility Billing 2 

Public Works 
Street Maintenance 4 

Water Maintenance 5 
Wastewater Maintenance 5 
Cemetery 1 

Total Full Time Employees 43 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Function/Programs 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 

4 4 4 2 3 3 
1 
1 

11 12 11 11 11 11 

0 0 0 0 

4 4 3 2 1 1 

2 2 3 2 2 2 

4 4 4 3 3 4 
5 4 4 5 5 4 
5 5 6 5 5 5 
1 1 1 1 1 1 

40 40 39 34 35 35 

Notes: ( l) Fiscal year 2018 Police Clerk went to full-time. 

2017 

2 

9 

1 

2 

5 
4 
6 

34 

(2) Municipal Court Clerk went to a part-time clerk in fiscal year 2018 and went to a permanent part-time clerk in fiscal year 2022. 

2016 

The Marshfield Municipal Court was transferred to the Associate Division of the Circuit Court of Webster County in fiscal year 2024. 
(3) In 2020 the City of Marshfield Fire Department was incorporated into the Fire Protection District and is no longer under the City. 

Source: City Clerk's Office 
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2015 

2 2 

10 10 

2 3 

2 2 

5 3 
4 4 
6 7 

36 36 



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MISSOURI 

Operating Indicators by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Function/Programs 
General Government 

Business licenses issued 302 322 336 317 246 300 290 282 278 295 
Residential building permits issued 30 19 23 20 20 27 28 17 8 15 
Nonresidential building permits issued 11 9 6 10 13 3 10 7 15 3 

Fire - Incidents Reports (2) 
Fire/Rescue 159 313 243 274 288 239 
EMS 268 621 635 657 581 679 
Number of incident types 28 49 51 55 43 36 

Fire - Mutual Aid 
Received 2 17 10 2 I 3 
Given 5 4 2 2 9 7 

Police 
Calls for Services 10,554 11,196 10,580 10,728 (3) 15,117 14,763 8,619 11,435 8,625 

Municipal Court 
Number of Municipal Court Summons (4) 497 665 375 807 3,129 2,235 1,359 914 609 

Water 
System use - gallons per day 493,890 508,040 464,777 502,801 517,313 498,368 531,136 506,235 501 ,173 481,474 

Sewer 
System use - gallons per day 458,146 459,316 430,579 460,866 469,577 459,439 482,523 464,688 465,177 447,634 

Note: 

(2) The City of Marshfield Fire Department was incorporated under the Marshfield Fire Protection District in 2020 and is no longer City operated. The number of 
Incident Reports for 2020 are for a partial year while the City operated the Fire Department. 

(3) Webster County Dispatch switched computer systems in 2020 and have not been able to retrieve data for the Marshfield Police calls for service for 2020. 

(4) The Marshfield Municipal Court was transferred to the Associate Division of the Circuit Court of Webster County in 2024. 

Source: City department records . 
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, MO 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Function 
General Government 

Area (square miles) (1) 5 .111 5.111 5.111 5.ll l 5.111 5.111 5.1 ll 5.111 5.031 5.031 
Number of general governmental buildings 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 2 2 

Public Safety 
Number of Police Stations I 1 I I 1 1 1 1 I 1 
Number of Fire Stations (2) 1 I 1 2 2 

Recreation 
Number of parks 10 10 10 IO 10 IO 9 9 9 9 

Note: (1) The City annexed 50.98 acres in 2017. This is property the City purchased in 2016 for the Activity Center/ Aquatic Pool and Elm Street extension. 
(2) The City of Marshfield Fire Department was incorporated under the Marshfield Fire Protection District in 2020. The Fire Station was transferred to 
the District in 2020. 

Source: City department records. 
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